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From: Scearce, Lynn
To: tomm@vcsmc.com
Cc: krishnac@suwanneecement.com; Dr. Max Lee; Rachal, Richard; Ceron, Heather; Shepherd.Lorinda@epa.gov;


 Subramaniam, Pawan; Read, David; Scearce, Lynn
Subject: 1210465-034-AC, Suwannee American Cement, LLC, Branford Cement Plant, Draft
Date: Thursday, March 12, 2015 1:13:27 PM
Attachments: 1210465-034-AC - Written Notice_signed.pdf


image001.png


Dear Mr. Messer:


Attached is the official Notice of Draft Permit for the project referenced below. Click on the
 link displayed below to access the permit project documents and reply back verifying receipt
 of the documents provided in the links.


Note:  We must receive verification that you are able to access the documents. Your
 immediate reply will preclude subsequent e-mail transmissions to verify.


Owner/Company Name: SUWANNEE AMERICAN CEMENT CO. 
Facility Name: SUWANNEE AMERICAN CEMENT 
Project Number: 1210465-034-AC 
Permit Status: DRAFT 
Permit Activity: CONSTRUCTION 
Facility County: SUWANNEE


Click on the following link to access the permit project documents: 
http://ARM-
PERMIT2K.dep.state.fl.us/adh/prod/pdf_permit_zip_files/1210465.034.AC.D_pdf.zip.


If you have any problems opening the documents or would like further information, please
 contact the Florida Department of Environmental Protection, Office of Permitting and
 Compliance.


Sincerely,


Lynn Scearce


Office of Permitting and Compliance (OPC)
Division of Air Resource Management – DEP
2600 Blair Stone Road, Mail Stop 5505
Phone:  850-717-9025
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Sent by Electronic mail – Received Receipt Requested 



Mr. Tom Messer, Plant Manager  
Branford Cement Plant  
Suwannee American Cement, LLC  
5117 U.S. Highway 27  
Branford, Florida  32008-2463  



Re: Project No. 1210465-034-AC 
Suwannee American Cement, LLC, Branford Cement Plant 
Sulfur Dioxide (SO2) Emission Standard  



Dear Mr. Messer: 



On January 9, 2015 you submitted an application requesting changes to the SO2 standard applicable to 
Emission Unit 004 - In-Line Kiln/Raw Mill.  The existing facility is located in Suwannee County at 
5117 US Highway 27 in Branford, Florida.   



Enclosed are the following documents:  the Written Notice of Intent to Issue Air Permit; the Public 
Notice of Intent to Issue Air Permit; the Technical Evaluation and Preliminary Determination; and the 
Draft Permit with Appendices.  The Public Notice of Intent to Issue Air Permit is the actual notice that 
you must have published in the legal advertisement section of a newspaper of general circulation in the 
area affected by this project.  If you have any questions, please contact the project engineer, Pawan 
Subramaniam, at (850) 717-9033 or by e-mail at Pawan.Subramaniam@dep.state.fl.us. 



Executed in Tallahassee, Florida. 
 
 
 
 
 



for Jeffery F. Koerner, Program Administrator 
Office of Permitting and Compliance 
Division of Air Resource Management 



 



 



 



Enclosures 



 



JFK/dlr/ps 
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WRITTEN NOTICE OF INTENT TO ISSUE AIR PERMIT 



In the Matter of an 
Application for Air Permit by: 



Suwannee American Cement, LLC  
5117 U.S. Highway 27  
Branford, Florida  32008-2463 



Authorized Representative: 
Mr. Tom Messer, Plant Manager 



Project No. 1210465-034-AC 
Minor Air Construction Permit 



Branford Cement Plant 
SO2 Emission Standard  



Suwannee County, Florida 



Facility Location:  Suwannee American Cement, LLC, operates the Branford Cement Plant, which is located in 
Suwannee County at 5117 US Highway 27 in Branford, Florida. 



Project:  The applicant applied on January 9, 2015 to the Department for an air construction permit.  The 
applicant proposes changes to the sulfur dioxide (SO2) emission standard applicable to Emission Unit 004 - In-
Line Kiln/Raw Mill.  The applicant requests a lower SO2 emission limit (from 0.20 to 0.183 pounds per ton of 
clinker produced) and a longer averaging period from (3 hours to 24 hours, rolling), measured by a continuous 
emission monitoring system (CEMS).  A review under the rules for Prevention of Significant Deterioration (PSD) 
at Section 62-212.400, Florida Administrative Code (F.A.C.) and a determination of Best Available control 
Technology (BACT) were not required.  Details of the project are provided in the application and the enclosed 
Technical Evaluation and Preliminary Determination. 



Permitting Authority:  Applications for air construction permits are subject to review in accordance with the 
provisions of Chapter 403, Florida Statutes (F.S.) and Chapters 62-4, 62-210 and 62-212, F.A.C.  The proposed 
project is not exempt from air permitting requirements and an air permit is required to perform the proposed work.  
The Division of Air Resource Management’s (DARM) Office of Permitting and Compliance is the Permitting 
Authority responsible for making a permit determination for this project.  The Permitting Authority’s physical 
address is:  2600 Blair Stone Road, Tallahassee, Florida.  The Permitting Authority’s mailing address is:  2600 
Blair Stone Road, MS #5505, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-2400.  The Permitting Authority’s telephone number is 
850/717-9000. 



Project File:  A complete project file is available for public inspection during the normal business hours of 8:00 
a.m. to 5:00 p.m., Monday through Friday (except legal holidays), at address indicated above for the Permitting 
Authority.  The complete project file includes the Draft Permit, the Technical Evaluation and Preliminary 
Determination, the application, and the information submitted by the applicant, exclusive of confidential records 
under Section 403.111, F.S.  Interested persons may contact the Permitting Authority’s project review engineer 
for additional information at the address and phone number listed above.  In addition, electronic copies of these 
documents are available on the following web site by entering draft permit number:  
http://www.dep.state.fl.us/air/emission/apds/default.asp. 



Notice of Intent to Issue Air Permit:  The Permitting Authority gives notice of its intent to issue an air permit to 
the applicant for the project described above.  The applicant has provided reasonable assurance that operation of 
the proposed equipment will not adversely impact air quality and that the project will comply with all applicable 
provisions of Chapters 62-4, 62-204, 62-210, 62-212, 62-296 and 62-297, F.A.C.  The Permitting Authority will 
issue a Final Permit in accordance with the conditions of the proposed Draft Permit unless a timely petition for an 
administrative hearing is filed under Sections 120.569 and 120.57, F.S. or unless public comment received in 
accordance with this notice results in a different decision or a significant change of terms or conditions. 



Comments:  The Permitting Authority will accept written comments concerning the proposed Draft Permit and 
requests for a public meeting for a period of 30 days from the date of publication of the Public Notice.  Written 
comments must be received by the Permitting Authority by close of business (5:00 p.m.) on or before the end of 
this 30-day period.  In addition, if a public meeting is requested within the 30-day comment period and conducted 
by the Permitting Authority, any oral and written comments received during the public meeting will also be 
considered by the Permitting Authority.  If timely received comments result in a significant change to the Draft 
Permit, the Permitting Authority shall revise the Draft Permit and require, if applicable, another Public Notice.  
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WRITTEN NOTICE OF INTENT TO ISSUE AIR PERMIT 



All comments filed will be made available for public inspection. 



Petitions:  A person whose substantial interests are affected by the proposed permitting decision may petition for 
an administrative hearing in accordance with Sections 120.569 and 120.57, F.S.  Petitions filed by any persons 
other than those entitled to written notice under Section 120.60(3), F.S., must be filed within 14 days of 
publication of the Public Notice or receipt of a written notice, whichever occurs first.  Under Section 120.60(3), 
F.S., however, any person who asked the Permitting Authority for notice of agency action may file a petition 
within 14 days of receipt of that notice, regardless of the date of publication.  A petitioner shall mail a copy of the 
petition to the applicant at the address indicated above, at the time of filing.  A petition for administrative hearing 
must contain the information set forth below and must be filed (received) with the Agency Clerk in the Office of 
General Counsel, 3900 Commonwealth Boulevard, MS 35, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3000, 
Agency.Clerk@dep.state.fl.us, before the deadline.  The failure of any person to file a petition within the 
appropriate time period shall constitute a waiver of that person’s right to request an administrative determination 
(hearing) under Sections 120.569 and 120.57, F.S., or to intervene in this proceeding and participate as a party to 
it.  Any subsequent intervention (in a proceeding initiated by another party) will be only at the approval of the 
presiding officer upon the filing of a motion in compliance with Rule 28-106.205, F.A.C. 



A petition that disputes the material facts on which the Permitting Authority’s action is based must contain the 
following information: (a) The name and address of each agency affected and each agency’s file or identification 
number, if known; (b) The name, address, any email address, telephone number and any facsimile number of the 
petitioner; the name, address any email address, telephone number, and any facsimile number of the petitioner’s 
representative, if any, which shall be the address for service purposes during the course of the proceeding; and an 
explanation of how the petitioner’s substantial interests will be affected by the agency determination; (c) A 
statement of when and how each petitioner received notice of the agency action or proposed decision; (d) A 
statement of all disputed issues of material fact.  If there are none, the petition must so state; (e) A concise 
statement of the ultimate facts alleged, including the specific facts the petitioner contends warrant reversal or 
modification of the agency’s proposed action; (f) A statement of the specific rules or statutes the petitioner 
contends require reversal or modification of the agency’s proposed action including an explanation of how the 
alleged facts relate to the specific rules or statutes; and, (g) A statement of the relief sought by the petitioner, 
stating precisely the action the petitioner wishes the agency to take with respect to the agency’s proposed action.  
A petition that does not dispute the material facts upon which the Permitting Authority’s action is based shall state 
that no such facts are in dispute and otherwise shall contain the same information as set forth above, as required 
by Rule 28-106.301, F.A.C. 



Because the administrative hearing process is designed to formulate final agency action, the filing of a petition 
means that the Permitting Authority’s final action may be different from the position taken by it in this Public 
Notice of Intent to Issue Air Permit.  Persons whose substantial interests will be affected by any such final 
decision of the Permitting Authority on the application have the right to petition to become a party to the 
proceeding, in accordance with the requirements set forth above. 



Mediation:  Mediation is not available in this proceeding.  



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



CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 



The undersigned duly designated deputy agency clerk hereby certifies that this written notice of Intent to Issue Air 
Permit package (including the Public Notice of Intent to Issue Air Permit, the Technical Evaluation and 
Preliminary Determination and the draft permit with Appendices) was sent by electronic mail, or a link to these 
documents made available electronically on a publicly accessible server, with received receipt requested before 
the close of business on the date indicated below to the following persons. 



Tom Messer, Suwannee American Cement, LLC:  tomm@vcsmc.com 
Krishna Cole, Suwannee American Cement, LLC:  krishnac@suwanneecement.com 
Max Lee, Ph.D., P.E., Koogler and Associates:  mlee@kooglerassociates.com 
Richard Rachal, Air Program Administrator, Northeast District Office:  Richard.Rachal@dep.state.fl.us 
Ms. Heather Ceron, EPA Region 4:  ceron.heather@epa.gov 
Lorinda Shepherd, EPA Region 4:  shephard.lorinda@epa.gov 
Ms. Lynn Scearce, DEP OPC:  lynn.scearce@dep.state.fl.us 



 



Clerk Stamp 



FILING AND ACKNOWLEDGMENT FILED, on this date, 
pursuant to Section 120.52(7), Florida Statutes, with the 
designated agency clerk, receipt of which is hereby 
acknowledged. 
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			Executed in Tallahassee, Florida.


			In the Matter of an


			Application for Air Permit by:


			Project File:  A complete project file is available for public inspection during the normal business hours of 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m., Monday through Friday (except legal holidays), at address indicated above for the Permitting Authority.  The complete...


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


			FILING AND ACKNOWLEDGMENT FILED, on this date, pursuant to Section 120.52(7), Florida Statutes, with the designated agency clerk, receipt of which is hereby acknowledged.





						2015-03-12T10:31:36-0400


			David L. Read, P.E.








						2015-03-12T10:31:57-0400


			David L. Read, P.E.








						2015-03-12T12:51:54-0400


			Lynn Scearce

























From: Dr. Max Lee
To: Subramaniam, Pawan
Cc: Linero, Alvaro; Cole Krishna; tomm@suwanneecement.com
Subject: 624-14-08 1210465-034-AC - Very Preliminary Draft Permit-ML comments
Date: Thursday, February 19, 2015 5:59:21 PM
Attachments: 1210465-034-AC - Very Preliminary Draft Permit-ML comments.docx


Pawan,
Please see my comments on the draft permit.
Best,
Max
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SECTION 4.  GENERAL CONDITIONS


Appendix GC (General Conditions)


PERMITTEE


			Suwannee American Cement, LLC


5117 U.S. Highway 27


Branford, Florida  32008


Authorized Representative:


Mr. Tom Messer, Plant Manager 


			Air Permit No. 1210465-034-AC


Permit Expires:  June 30, 2015


Minor Air Construction Permit


Branford Cement Plant


Sulfur Dioxide (SO2) Emission Standard








Project


This is the final air construction permit, which revises the kiln SO2 emission standard including the emission limit and averaging period.  The proposed work will be conducted at the existing Branford Cement plant, which is categorized under Standard Industrial Classification Code No. 3241.  The existing Branford Cement Plant is located in Suwannee County at 5117 U.S. Highway 27 in Branford, Florida.  The UTM coordinates Zone 17, 321.4 km East and 3315.9 km North.   


This final permit is organized into the following sections:  Section 1 (General Information); Section 2 (Administrative Requirements); Section 3 (Emissions Unit Specific Conditions); and Section 4 (Appendix).  


STATEMENT OF BASIS


This air pollution construction permit is issued under the provisions of:  Chapter 403 of the Florida Statutes (F.S.) and Chapters 62-4, 62-204, 62-210, 62-212, 62-296 and 62-297 of the Florida Administrative Code (F.A.C.).  The permittee is authorized to conduct the proposed work in accordance with the conditions of this permit.  This project is subject to the general preconstruction review requirements in Rule 62-212.300, F.A.C. and is not subject to the preconstruction review requirements for major stationary sources in Rule 62-212.400, F.A.C. for the Prevention of Significant Deterioration (PSD) of Air Quality.


Upon issuance of this final permit, any party to this order has the right to seek judicial review of it under Section 120.68 of the Florida Statutes by filing a notice of appeal under Rule 9.110 of the Florida Rules of Appellate Procedure with the clerk of the Department of Environmental Protection in the Office of General Counsel (Mail Station #35, 3900 Commonwealth Boulevard, Tallahassee, Florida, 32399-3000) and by filing a copy of the notice of appeal accompanied by the applicable filing fees with the appropriate District Court of Appeal.  The notice must be filed within 30 days after this order is filed with the clerk of the Department.


Executed in Tallahassee, Florida


(Electronic Signature)





(DRAFT)











for	Jeffery F. Koerner, Program Administrator


Office of Permitting and Compliance


Division of Air Resource Management
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE


The undersigned duly designated deputy agency clerk hereby certifies that this Air Permit package was sent by electronic mail, or a link to these documents made available electronically on a publicly accessible server, with received receipt requested before the close of business on the date indicated below to the following persons.


Tom Messer, Suwannee American Cement, LLC: tomm@vcsmc.com


Krishna Cole, Suwannee American Cement, LLC:  krishnac@suwanneecement.com


Max Lee, Ph.D., P.E., Koogler and Associates:  mlee@kooglerassociates.com 


Rick Rachal, DEP Northeast District:  richard.rachal@dep.state.fl.us 


Heather Ceron, EPA Region 4:  ceron.heather@epa.gov 


Lorinda Shepherd, EPA Region 4:  shephard.lorinda@epa.gov 


(Possible copies to third parties to be determined)


Lynn Scearce, DEP OPC:  lynn.scearce@dep.state.fl.us 


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
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DRAFT PERMIT
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Branford Cement Plant	SO2 Emission Standard
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FACILITY DESCRIPTION


The existing facility consists of a portland cement manufacturing plant, the associated quarry, and raw material and cement handling operations.  The plant combines raw materials and utilizes a preheater/calciner kiln system with in-line raw mill to produce cement clinker.  The clinker is milled and combined with gypsum and limestone to produce portland cement.  The existing plant has a capacity of 210 tons per hour of dry preheater feed materials, 120 tons per hour of clinker production, and 150 tons per hour of portland cement production.  Annual production is limited to the following 12-month rolling totals:  1,648,578 tons per year of dry preheater feed materials; 965,425 tons per year of clinker production; and 1,191,360 tons per year of portland cement production. 


The main stack is equipped with continuous emission monitoring systems (CEMS) for volatile organic compounds (VOC), total hydrocarbons (THC), nitrogen oxides (NOX), sulfur dioxide (SO2), a process monitor for carbon monoxide (CO) and a continuous opacity monitoring system (COMS) for visible emissions.


The existing facility consists of the following emissions units (EU).


			Facility ID No. 1210465





			EU No.


			Emission Unit Description





			001


			1,000 TPH primary crusher and associated unenclosed belt conveyors to raw material storage – fugitive emissions





			002


			Raw material processing operations controlled by baghouses





			003


			Raw material processing – unenclosed conveyor transfer points – D conveyors





			004


			In line kiln/raw mill controlled by baghouse – main stack





			005


			Clinker cooler controlled by Electrostatic Precipitator (ESP)





			006


			Clinker and cement processing operations controlled by baghouses





			007


			Clinker and cement processing – unenclosed conveyor transfer points – M conveyors





			008


			Coal mill and coal transfer system controlled by baghouses





			009


			Unenclosed coal conveying equipment – S conveyors





			010


			Natural gas fired emergency generator set








PROPOSED PROJECT


This permit affects EU 004. The proposed project is to reduce the SO2 emissions limit from 0.20 lb/ton clinker to 0.183 lb/ton clinker and adjust the averaging period of the allowable SO2 emissions limit from a 3-hr averaging period to a 24-hr averaging period. The original PSD permit established the SO2 3-hr limit to be revised and congruent to this revision.


This project will affect the following emissions units. Conditions applicable to the following.


			Facility ID No. 1210465





			EU No.


			Emission Unit Description





			004


			In line kiln/raw mill controlled by baghouse – main stack








Facility Regulatory Classification


· The facility is a major source of hazardous air pollutants (HAP).


· The facility is a Title V major source of air pollution in accordance with Chapter 62-213, F.A.C.


· The facility is a major stationary source in accordance with Rule 62-212.400(PSD), F.A.C.











SECTION 1.  GENERAL INFORMATION (DRAFT)





1. Permitting Authority:  The permitting authority for this project is the Office of Permitting and Compliance in the Division of Air Resource Management of the Department of Environmental Protection (Department).  The Office of Permitting and Compliance mailing address is 2600 Blair Stone Road (MS #5505), Tallahassee, Florida  32399-2400.  All documents related to applications for permits to operate an emissions unit shall be submitted to the Air Resource Section of the Department’s Northeast District Office at 8800 Baymeadows Way, Suite 100, Jacksonville, Florida 32256-7590.


2. Compliance Authority:  All documents related to compliance activities such as reports, tests, and notifications shall be submitted to the Air Resource Section of the Department’s Northeast District Office at 8800 Baymeadows Way, Suite 100, Jacksonville, Florida 32256-7590.


3. Applicable Regulations, Forms and Application Procedures:  Unless otherwise specified in this permit, the construction and operation of the subject emissions units shall be in accordance with the capacities and specifications stated in the application.  The facility is subject to all applicable provisions of: Chapter 403, F.S.; and Chapters 62-4, 62-204, 62-210, 62-212, 62-213, 62-296 and 62-297, F.A.C.  Issuance of this permit does not relieve the permittee from compliance with any applicable federal, state, or local permitting or regulations.


4. New or Additional Conditions:  For good cause shown and after notice and an administrative hearing, if requested, the Department may require the permittee to conform to new or additional conditions.  The Department shall allow the permittee a reasonable time to conform to the new or additional conditions, and on application of the permittee, the Department may grant additional time.  [Rule 62-4.080, F.A.C.]


5. Modifications:  The permittee shall notify the Compliance Authority upon commencement of construction.  No new emissions unit shall be constructed and no existing emissions unit shall be modified without obtaining an air construction permit from the Department.  Such permit shall be obtained prior to beginning construction or modification.  [Rules 62-210.300(1) and 62-212.300(1)(a), F.A.C.]


6. Construction and Expiration.  The expiration date shown on the first page of this permit provides time to complete the physical construction activities authorized by this permit, complete any necessary compliance testing, and obtain an operation permit.  Notwithstanding this expiration date, all specific emissions limitations and operating requirements established by this permit shall remain in effect until the facility or emissions unit is permanently shut down.  For good cause, the permittee may request that that a permit be extended.  Pursuant to Rule 62-4.080(3), F.A.C., such a request shall be submitted to the Permitting Authority in writing before the permit expires.  [Rules 62-4.070(4), 62-4.080 & 62-210.300(1), F.A.C.]


7. Source Obligation:


(a)	At such time that a particular source or modification becomes a major stationary source or major modification (as these terms were defined at the time the source obtained the enforceable limitation) solely by virtue of a relaxation in any enforceable limitation which was established after August 7, 1980, on the capacity of the source or modification otherwise to emit a pollutant, such as a restriction on hours of operation, then the requirements of subsections 62-212.400(4) through (12), F.A.C., shall apply to the source or modification as though construction had not yet commenced on the source or modification.


(b)	At such time that a particular source or modification becomes a major stationary source or major modification (as these terms were defined at the time the source obtained the enforceable limitation) solely by exceeding its projected actual emissions, then the requirements of subsections 62-212.400(4) through (12), F.A.C., shall apply to the source or modification as though construction had not yet commenced on the source or modification.


[Rule 62-212.400(12), F.A.C.]






8. Application for Title V Permit:  This permit authorizes construction of the permitted emissions units and initial operation to determine compliance with Department rules.  A Title V air operation permit is required for regular operation of the permitted emissions unit.  The permittee shall apply for a Title V air operation permit at least 90 days prior to expiration of this permit, but no later than 180 days after commencing operation.  Because this construction is effective immediately upon approval, the commencement of operation will begin the 180 day period on the issuance of the final permit.  To apply for a Title V operation permit, the applicant shall submit the appropriate application form, compliance test results, and such additional information as the Department may by law require.  The application shall be submitted to the appropriate Permitting Authority with copies to the Compliance Authority.  [Rules 62-4.030, 62-4.050, 62-4.220 and Chapter 62-213, F.A.C.]


9. Future Monitoring, Reporting and Recordkeeping of Projected Actual Emissions:  This construction permit avoids the requirements of subsections 62-212.400(4) through (12), F.A.C., for certain pollutants based in whole or in part on projected actual emissions calculations.  In accordance with Rule 62-212.300(1)(e), F.A.C., monitoring, reporting and recordkeeping provisions shall apply to emissions of such pollutants as described in Section 3, Specific Condition 4.


(1) 


(1) 


SECTION 2.  ADMINISTRATIVE REQUIREMENTS (DRAFT)





This section of the permit addresses the following emissions units.


			E.U. ID No.


			Emission Unit Description





			004


			In line kiln/raw mill controlled by baghouse - main stack








COMPLIANCE WITH EXISTING PERMIT CONDITIONS


1. Existing Permits:  This permit supplements all existing valid air construction permits.  The permittee shall continue to comply with all applicable conditions from valid air construction permits (as incorporated into the current Title V air operation permit No. 1210465-019-AV), except as modified by this permit.  
[Rule 62-4.070, F.A.C. and Air Construction Permit No. 1210465-001-AC (PSD-FL-259), including all modifications thereof]


EMISSION LIMITATIONS AND PERFORMANCE STANDARDS


2. SO2:Emission Standard:  Tthe applicable SO2 emission limits contained in the table of Condition III.B.15 of Permit No. 1210465-011-AC are revised as follows:


			POLLUTANT


			EMISSION LIMIT 


			AVERAGING TIME


			BASIS





			SO2 


			0.20 0.183 lb/ton of clinker


			24.0 22.0 lb/hour


			3 24 hours 4


			BACT





			Footnote 4:  The averaging time for the short-term NOx limit shall be a 24-hour rolling average computed in accordance with specific condition 18 of this subsection.  The averaging time for the long-term NOx limit shall be a 30 operating-day block average computed in accordance with specific condition 18 of this subsection.  The averaging time for SO2 shall be a 324-hour rolling average computed in accordance with specific condition 18 of this subsection. 








[Applicant Request]


3. Continuous Emission Monitoring Systems:  the compliance demonstration provisions in Condition III.B.18, paragraph a. of Permit No. 1210465-011-AC are revised as follows: 


a. Compliance Demonstration:  Compliance with the short-term emission limit for NOX shall be based on a 24-hour rolling average that shall be recomputed after every valid hour as the arithmetic average of that hourly average and the preceding 23 valid hourly averages.  Compliance with the emission limit for SO2 shall be based on a 
rolling 3 24-hour average that shall be recomputed after every valid hour as the arithmetic average of that hourly average and the preceding two 23 valid hourly averages.  Compliance with the emission limits for VOC and long-term NOx shall be based on a 30 operating-day block average that shall be computed as the arithmetic average of all valid hourly averages occurring within each 30 operating-day block.  For purposes of the VOC and long-term NOx limits, an operating day is any day that the kiln produces clinker and/or fires fuel.	Comment by Max Lee: I think this was recently revised to be rolling?


b.-g.	Unchanged.


4. Future Monitoring, Reporting and Recordkeeping of Projected Actual Emissions:  This construction permit avoids the requirements of subsections 62-212.400(4) through (12), F.A.C., for certain pollutants based in whole or in part on projected actual emissions calculations.  In accordance with Rule 62-212.300(1)(e), F.A.C., the following monitoring, reporting and recordkeeping provisions shall apply to emissions of such pollutants: 


1. The permittee shall monitor the emissions of SO2 from the In-Line Kiln/Raw Mill system 
(EU-004) using the most reliable information available, calculate and maintain a record of the annual emissions, in tons per year on a calendar year basis, for a period of 5 years (2015 through 2019) following resumption of regular operations after the change.  Emissions shall be computed in accordance with 
Rule 62-210.370, F.A.C. 






2. If actual annual SO2 emissions are above the baseline actual emissions plus 40 tons (i.e., 51.0 tons), tThe permittee shall report to the Department within 60 days after the end of each year during which records must be generated under subparagraph 62-212.300(1)(e)1., F.A.C., setting out the unit's annual emissions during the calendar year that preceded submission of the report.  The report shall contain the following: 


a. The name, address and telephone number of the owner or operator of the major stationary source; 


b. The annual emissions as calculated pursuant to subparagraph 62-212.300(1)(e)1., F.A.C.; 


c. If the emissions differ from the preconstruction projection, an explanation as to why there is a difference; and 


d. Any other information that the owner or operator wishes to include in the report. 


3. The information required to be documented and maintained pursuant to subparagraphs 
62-212.300(1)(e)1. and 2., F.A.C., shall be submitted to the Department, which shall make it available for review to the general public. 


[Rules 62-4.070 and 62-212.300(1)(e), F.A.C.]


{Permitting Note:  Because historical SO2 actual emissions area below the PSD threshold (40 tons/yr) annual PSD reporting is only required if actual annual emissions are above the baseline plus the PSD threshold). Refer to the Technical Evaluation issued February XX, 2015 that contains baseline actual emissions, past production rates, projected annual emissions, and projected future production when performing the calculations described in paragraph 2.c. above.}





(1) 


(1) 


SECTION 3.  EMISSIONS UNIT SPECIFIC CONDITIONS (DRAFT)


EU 004 – Inline Kiln/Raw Mill





The permittee shall comply with the following general conditions from Rule 62-4.160, F.A.C.


1. The terms, conditions, requirements, limitations and restrictions set forth in this permit, are “permit conditions” and are binding and enforceable pursuant to Sections 403.141, 403.727, or 403.859 through 403.861, F.S.  The permittee is placed on notice that the Department will review this permit periodically and may initiate enforcement action for any violation of these conditions.


2. This permit is valid only for the specific processes and operations applied for and indicated in the approved drawings or exhibits. Any unauthorized deviation from the approved drawings, exhibits, specifications, or conditions of this permit may constitute grounds for revocation and enforcement action by the Department.


3. As provided in subsections 403.987(6) and 403.722(5), F.S., the issuance of this permit does not convey any vested rights or any exclusive privileges. Neither does it authorize any injury to public or private property or any invasion of personal rights, nor any infringement of federal, state, or local laws or regulations. This permit is not a waiver of or approval of any other department permit that may be required for other aspects of the total project which are not addressed in this permit.


4. This permit conveys no title to land or water, does not constitute State recognition or acknowledgment of title, and not constitute authority for the use of submerged lands unless herein provided and the necessary title or leasehold interests have been obtained from the State. Only the Trustees of the Internal Improvement Trust Fund may express State opinion as to title.


5. This permit does not relieve the permittee from liability for harm or injury to human health or welfare, animal, or plant life, or property caused by the construction or operation of this permitted source, or from penalties therefore; nor does it allow the permittee to cause pollution in contravention of Florida Statutes and Department rules, unless specifically authorized by an order from the Department.


6. The permittee shall properly operate and maintain the facility and systems of treatment and control (and related appurtenances) that are installed and used by the permittee to achieve compliance with the conditions of this permit, as required by Department rules. This provision includes the operation of backup or auxiliary facilities or similar systems when necessary to achieve compliance with the conditions of the permit and when required by Department rules.


7. The permittee, by accepting this permit, specifically agrees to allow authorized Department personnel, upon presentation of credentials or other documents as may be required by law and at reasonable times, access to the premises where the permitted activity is located or conducted to:


a. Have access to and copy any records that must be kept under conditions of the permit;


b. Inspect the facility, equipment, practices, or operations regulated or required under this permit; and


c. Sample or monitor any substances or parameters at any location reasonably necessary to assure compliance with this permit or Department rules.  Reasonable time may depend on the nature of the concern being investigated.


8. If, for any reason, the permittee does not comply with or will be unable to comply with any condition or limitation specified in this permit, the permittee shall immediately provide the Department with the following information:


a. A description of and cause of noncompliance; and


b. The period of noncompliance, including dates and times; or, if not corrected, the anticipated time the noncompliance is expected to continue, and steps being taken to reduce, eliminate, and prevent recurrence of the noncompliance. The permittee shall be responsible for any and all damages which may result and may be subject to enforcement action by the Department for penalties or for revocation of this permit.






9. In accepting this permit, the permittee understands and agrees that all records, notes, monitoring data and other information relating to the construction or operation of this permitted source which are submitted to the Department may be used by the Department as evidence in any enforcement case involving the permitted source arising under the Florida Statutes or Department rules, except where such use is prescribed by Sections 403.111 and 403.73, F.S. Such evidence shall only be used to the extent it is consistent with the Florida Rules of Civil Procedure and appropriate evidentiary rules.


10. The permittee agrees to comply with changes in Department rules and Florida Statutes after a reasonable time for compliance; provided, however, the permittee does not waive any other rights granted by Florida Statutes or Department rules. A reasonable time for compliance with a new or amended surface water quality standard, other than those standards addressed in Rule 62-302.500, F.A.C., shall include a reasonable time to obtain or be denied a mixing zone for the new or amended standard.


11. This permit is transferable only upon Department approval in accordance with Rules 62-4.120 and 
62-730.300, F.A.C., as applicable. The permittee shall be liable for any non-compliance of the permitted activity until the transfer is approved by the Department.


12. This permit or a copy thereof shall be kept at the work site of the permitted activity.


13. This permit also constitutes:


a. Determination of Best Available Control Technology (BACT was revised);


b. Determination of Prevention of Significant Deterioration (not applicable for this project); and


c. Compliance with New Source Performance Standards (not applicable for this project).


14. The permittee shall comply with the following:


a. Upon request, the permittee shall furnish all records and plans required under Department rules.  During enforcement actions, the retention period for all records will be extended automatically unless otherwise stipulated by the Department.


b. The permittee shall hold at the facility or other location designated by this permit records of all monitoring information (including all calibration and maintenance records and all original strip chart recordings for continuous monitoring instrumentation) required by the permit, copies of all reports required by this permit, and records of all data used to complete the application for this permit. These materials shall be retained at least three years from the date of the sample, measurement, report, or application unless otherwise specified by Department rule.


c. Records of monitoring information shall include:


(a) The date, exact place, and time of sampling or measurements;


(b) The person responsible for performing the sampling or measurements;


(c) The dates analyses were performed;


(d) The person responsible for performing the analyses;


(e) The analytical techniques or methods used;


(f) The results of such analyses.


15. When requested by the Department, the permittee shall within a reasonable time furnish any information required by law which is needed to determine compliance with the permit. If the permittee becomes aware the relevant facts were not submitted or were incorrect in the permit application or in any report to the Department, such facts or information shall be corrected promptly.
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From: Dr. Max Lee
To: Subramaniam, Pawan
Cc: Linero, Alvaro; Cole Krishna; tomm@suwanneecement.com
Subject: 624-14-08 1210465-034-AC - Very Preliminary TEPD-ML comments
Date: Thursday, February 19, 2015 5:45:32 PM
Attachments: 1210465-034-AC - Very Preliminary TEPD-ML comments.docx


Pawan,
Please see my comments on the draft TEPD.  I appreciate the significant effort put into the
 technical.  Al - I hope to see you tomorrow at the AWMA event in which I would like to discuss these
 comments and also aspects of Hg control systems.
I will send  comments on the draft permit next.
Thank you,
Max
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APPENDIX – CHARACTERISTICS OF SO2 EMISSIONS FROM SAC
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1. GENERAL PROJECT INFORMATION


1.1. Facility Description and Location


Suwannee American Cement, LLC (SAC), operates the Branford Cement Plant.  It is an existing portland cement manufacturing plant, which is categorized under Standard Industrial Classification Code No. 3241.  The Branford Cement Plant is located in Suwannee County at 5117 US Highway 27 in Branford, Florida (Figure 1).  The UTM coordinates of the existing facility are Zone 17, 321.4 kilometers (km) East, and 3315.9 km North.  This site is in an area that is in attainment (or designated as unclassifiable) for all air pollutants subject to state and federal Ambient Air Quality Standards (AAQS).  Figure 1 is an aerial photograph of the plant.


[image: Map2]  [image: slide3]


[bookmark: _Ref410386359]Figure 1.  Branford Cement Plant Site.  	Figure 2.  Aerial View of Branford Cement Plant from Northwest


The plant combines raw materials and utilizes a preheater/precalciner kiln with in-line raw mill to produce clinker. The clinker is milled and combined with gypsum to produce portland cement. The plant has a capacity of 210 tons/hour of dry preheater feed materials, 120 tons/hour of clinker production, and 150 tons/hour of portland cement production.  Annual (12-month rolling) production is limited to 1,648,578 tons of dry preheater feed materials; 965,425 tons of clinker production; and 1,191,360 tons of portland cement production (after addition of gypsum and limestone to clinker). 


The plant employs the modern dry process technology.  The major equipment at the plant includes an indirect-fired kiln with a separate preheater and calciner (PH/C kiln), an in-line raw mill, a clinker cooler, finish mill, silos, conveyers, and particulate control/dust collection and recycling equipment.  The cement product is stored in silos and is shipped by truck.  Figure 3 is a diagram of a PH/C kiln similar to the one at the plant.  


The raw materials include limestone, sand, clay, bauxite, iron ore, mill scale, and coal ash that contain calcium, silica, iron and aluminum.  These materials are metered to and ground within the raw mill to make finely divided raw meal.  Raw meal is stored and then continuously weighed on feed scales and fed at the top of the preheater tower as shown in the diagram.  As it falls through the preheater it is contacted and progressively heated by exhaust gases from the calciner and kiln.  The calciner has a burner in a separate combustion chamber that provides the necessary heat to drive off carbon dioxide from the limestone converting it to free lime 
(CaCO3 = CaO + CO2).  The calciner operates at a temperature of approximately 2,000 degrees Fahrenheit (oF) and burns coal.


The calcined materials enter the kiln where they are further heated and transformed into nodules of clinker.  These exit the kiln near the main kiln coal burner that operates at approximately 3,000oF.  The clinker falls into the cooler where it is cooled by ambient air.  The heated air from the clinker cooler is used as secondary air to support combustion at the kiln burner and is also conveyed along a tertiary air duct to support combustion in and near the calciner combustion chamber.


Combustion CChamber


Air return, fuel


Cement Kiln


Flame: ~ 3000 oF


Calcined Materials


CaO/CaCO3, SiO2, Fe203, Al203


Clinker


Cooler


Calciner


Top of Preheater


Feed consisting of ground raw materials such as limestone, sand, clay, bauxite, iron ore, mill scale, fly ash or bottom ash.


Staged Air


Main Kiln Burner


Air, Coal,F Alternative Fuels


NOX Control


Inject Ammonia


Feed Scales





[bookmark: _Ref410386738]Figure 3.  Diagram of Dry Process Cement Kiln with Preheater and Staged Air Calciner.


Cooled exhaust gases leaving the preheater go through the raw mill (not shown) where the remaining heat is used to dry incoming coarse raw materials.  As the raw materials are ground they are lifted by the exhaust gas flow and conveyed to the main baghouse (not shown) that also serves the purpose of a particulate control device.  The finely divided dry material in the baghouse is conveyed to storage silos and then weighed and introduced into the process at the top of the preheater as discussed above.  Figures 4 and 5 are photographs of the PH/C kiln and the coal ash (a raw material) handling area.  


[image: 259D 001]	[image: Flyash]


[bookmark: _Ref410386863]Figure 4.  Kiln and Lower Preheater/Calciner	Figure 5.  View of Coal Ash Handling Area.


The cement produced by SAC is typically distributed to ready-mix facilities within 100 miles of the facility and is used in many different construction projects throughout North Florida.  SAC’s cement is locally produced and locally consumed. 


1.2. Air Pollution Control Equipment


Process cyclones and a baghouse collect raw meal swept from the raw mill for return to the process. The baghouse further controls emissions of particulate matter (PM) from the PH/C kiln exhaust.  Judicious selection of raw materials and combustion design are the key to control of all other pollutants.  These are the specific controls for CO, VOC/THC and organic hazardous air pollutants (HAP) such as dioxin and furan.  NOX emissions are further controlled by indirect firing, multiple burn points, air staging in the calciner and ammonia-based selective non-catalytic reduction (SNCR).  The permitted emissions units (EU’s) are listed in Table 1.


[bookmark: _Ref410292106]Table 1.  List of Emissions Units at the SAC Branford Cement Plant


			EU NO.


			Emissions Unit Description





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








Acid gases such as SO2 and hydrochloric acid (HCl) are further controlled by limestone scrubbing by raw materials, finely divided lime in the calciner or supplementary hydrated lime injection.  Mercury (Hg) is also controlled by dust shuttling and judicious selection and sampling of Hg content in raw materials and fuels.


1.3. SO2 Control at SAC


The role of the project is better understood by first reviewing the existing SO2 control system.  Limestone (CaCO3) in the feed is converted into finely divided dry lime (CaO) in the calciner by the reaction: 


CaCO3 = CaO + CO2


Refer to Figure 6.  CaO in the calciner serves as an excellent scrubbing reagent and binds sulfur dioxide formed by combustion of fuel in the kiln and calciner.  The product consists of calcium sulfite (CaSO3) and calcium sulfate (CaSO4).


CaO + SO2 + oxygen = CaSO3 + CaSO4 (unbalanced equation)	Comment by Max Lee: Please reference/cite article unless FDEP is author of the research.


While CaSO4 is stable within the temperature regime of the calciner, it is volatilized at the temperatures encountered in the kiln.  SO2 is revolatilized and then is tied up by excess sodium (Na) and potassium (K) in the exhaust gas to form K2SO4 and Na2SO4.  Ultimately, these species combine with CaSO4 within the kiln to form more stable complex K-Na-SO4–CaSO4 species that are incorporated into the clinker.


Combustion Chamber


Fuel sulfur as SO2 released.


Cement Kiln


SO2 evolution and absorption, reaction to K-Na-SO4-CaSO4 Compounds


SO2 scrubbing in Calciner


CaO + SO2 = CaSO3/CaSO4


Clinker Cooler


Fuel SO2/Sulfur ends up in product.


Scrubbing in the Raw Mill


Raw mix including limestone contacts exhaust gas in raw mill and scrubs out SO2 of raw material origin, e.g. pyrites.  Raw meal is metered into process


Main Kiln Burner


Fuel sulfur as SO2 released.


Hydrated Lime Addition


Hydrated lime [(Ca(OH)2]is added infrequently such as during startup or when the raw mill is down or when encountering raw materials with higher in iron pyrite (FeS2).


Roasting of pyrites


FeS2 releases sulfides that are oxidized to SO2 as raw meal travels down preheater.  Not significant in Florida geology.





[bookmark: _Ref410656032]Figure 6.  Simplified Diagram of SO2 Generation and Removal within Cement Pyroprocessing.


Generally speaking, fuel sulfur leaves the process with the product, thus avoiding emissions into the atmosphere.  The process is so efficient that almost no SO2 of fuel origin is emitted from a modern cement kiln.  


There exists the possibility of SO2 emissions resulting from “roasting” of feed material as it travels down the preheater.  This occurs when occasional pockets of sulfide impurities (iron pyrite, i.e. FeS2) in the limestone are encountered.  The pyritic sulfur is released as the raw meal is heated under oxidizing conditions during its downward path through the preheater according to the following overall equation:	Comment by Max Lee:  Same as above.


4FeS2 + 11O2 = 2Fe2O3 + 8SO2 (pyritic SO2)


By and large, this phenomenon occurs in raw materials encountered outside of Florida such as in Texas and South Carolina.  Because pyritic SO2 does not reach the calciner, it does not react with the finely divided hot lime in the calciner and is not incorporated into the product clinker as described above.  Much of the pyritic SO2 is abated when exhaust gases are used to dry incoming raw materials in the raw mill.  Much of the pyritic SO2 is absorbed by the finely ground limestone under the moist conditions that occur in the raw mill environment.  SAC intermittently adds purchased hydrated lime as needed to remove SO2 under such conditions.






1.4. Facility Regulatory Categories


· The facility is a major source of hazardous air pollutants (HAP).


· The facility is a Title V major source of air pollution in accordance with Chapter 62-213, F.A.C.


· The facility is a major stationary source in accordance with Rule 62-212.400, F.A.C. for the Prevention of Significant Deterioration (PSD) of Air Quality.


1.5. General Project Description


The request does not involve a physical project.  Link to Application  The applicant requests changes to reduce the SO2 emission limit and increase the averaging time that are applicable to Emission Unit 004 - In-Line Kiln/Raw Mill.  The applicant requests a lower SO2 emission limit from 0.20 to 0.183 pounds per ton of clinker produced (lb/ton).  The applicant also requests a longer averaging period that is used for compliance of SO2 emissions from 3 hours to 24 hours, rolling basis, measured by a continuous emission monitoring system (CEMS).  The changes will allow the company to improve plant operations and product by more careful management of a hydrated lime injection system that is infrequently used to manage occasional spikes in SO2 concentrations.


The request requires revision of earlier air construction permit(s) issued pursuant to Department Rule 62-212.400, Florida Administrative Code (F.A.C.), Prevention of Significant Deterioration (PSD), including Best Available Control Technology (BACT).  The changes will eventually be incorporated into the facility Title V air operation permit.  The plant operates under Title V permit 1210465-019-AV that includes the present SO2 limit (page 18).


1.6. Processing Schedule


01/09/2015	Received the application for a minor source air pollution construction permit.


02/xx/2015	Draft permit issued.


2. PSD APPLICABILITY REVIEW


2.1. General PSD Applicability


The Department regulates major stationary sources in accordance with Florida’s PSD program.  PSD preconstruction review is required in areas that are currently in attainment with the state and federal ambient air quality standards (AAQS) or areas designated as “unclassifiable” for these regulated pollutants.  The project is located in Suwannee County, which is in an area that is currently designated in attainment with each State AAQS and NAAQS or not classified.


The key requirements of a PSD review include: employment of BACT; a demonstration that the project will not cause or contribute to a violation of a state of federal AAQS or increment; and a demonstration that the project will not cause adverse impacts to Air Quality Related Values (AQRVs) such as visibility, soils and vegetation.


Commonly addressed PSD pollutants include: carbon monoxide (CO), nitrogen oxides (NOX) PM, PM with a mean diameter of 10 microns or less (PM10), PM with a mean diameter of 2.5 microns or less (PM2.5), sulfuric acid mist (SAM), sulfur dioxide (SO2), volatile organic compounds (VOC), lead (Pb), fluorides (F), and mercury (Hg).  Additional PSD pollutants that are more common to certain other industries include: hydrogen sulfide (H2S), TRS including H2S, reduced sulfur compounds (RSC) including H2S, municipal waste combustor (MWC) organics measured as total tetra- through octa-chlorinated dibenzo-p-dioxins and dibenzofurans (dioxin/furan), MWC metals measured as PM, MWC acid gases measured as SO2 and HCl, and municipal solid waste (MSW) landfill emissions as non-methane organic compounds (NMOC).  


Greenhouse gases (GHGs) is another PSD pollutant.  GHGs is defined at section 40 CFR 86.1818-12(a) as the aggregate group of gases including carbon dioxide (CO2) nitrous oxide (N2O), methane (CH4), hydrofluorocarbons (HFCs), perfluorocarbons (PFCs), and sulfur hexafluoride (SF6).  GHGs is expressed as CO2-equivalent (CO2e).  In making the CO2e calculation, the values listed in 40 CFR 98, Subpart A, Table A-1 are used to weight emissions by their respective Global Warming Potential (GWP).  
The current GWP factors for four of the GHGs are:  CO2 = 1; CH4 = 25; N2O = 298 and SF6 = 22,800.  
Link to 40 CFR 98, Subpart A	Comment by Max Lee: Is this correct cite for PSD pollutant definition of GHGs?	Comment by Max Lee: Same as above – not sure this is correct 40 CFR 52.21 citation for GHGs GWP?


2.2. Definition of a Major Stationary Source


As defined in Rule 62-210.200(Definitions), F.A.C., a stationary source is a “major stationary source” (major PSD source) if it emits or has the potential to emit (PTE):


· 250 tons per year (tons/year) or more of any PSD pollutant; or 


· 100 tons/year or more of any PSD pollutant and the facility belongs to one of the 28 listed PSD major facility categories. 


According to a recent Supreme Court Opinion and EPA Implementation Guidance, a stationary source is not a major stationary source subject to PSD if only its GHGs emissions exceed the values listed above. [footnoteRef:1] [1:  	U.S. Supreme Court opinion dated June 23, 2014.  Link to Supreme Court Opinion  EPA guidance dated July 24, 2014.  Link to EPA Guidance] 



The listed PSD major facility categories includes “portland cement plants”.  The given category applies to the SAC Plant.  The SAC Plant is a major stationary source based on actual emissions of and potential to emit 100 tons/year or more of several individual PSD pollutants.  


Once a new facility is considered a major stationary source based on one PSD pollutant, then other PSD pollutants are reviewed for PSD applicability based on the respective Significant Emission Rate (SER) defined and specified in Rule 62-210.200, F.A.C.  Each pollutant projected to be emitted at a rate equal to or greater than its respective SER is also considered to be “significant” and subject to PSD preconstruction review, including a BACT determination.  Although a new stationary source may be “major” for a single PSD pollutant, the project must include BACT controls for any PSD pollutant that exceeds the corresponding SERs listed in Table 2.  


[bookmark: _Ref404613265]Table 2.  List of Significant Emission Rates (SERs) by PSD-Pollutant. 1


			Pollutant


			SER (tons/year)


			Pollutant


			SER (tons/year) 4





			CO


			100


			NOX


			40





			PM/PM10/PM2.5


			25/15/10


			Ozone (VOC) 2


			40





			PM2.5 (NOX)


			40


			PM2.5 (SO2)


			40





			Ozone (NOX) 2


			40


			SAM


			7





			SO2


			40


			Pb


			0.6





			Hg


			0.1 


			GHGs


			> 75,000 (CO2e) and > 0 (mass) 3





			1. Excluding fluoride and pollutants specific to the Pulp and Paper industry, MWCs, MSW landfills.


1. Ozone (O3) is regulated by its precursors (VOC and NOX).  PSD for PM2.5 can be triggered by its precursors (NOX and SO2).


1. Pursuant to 40 CFR 52.21(b)(23)(ii), pollutants with no SER listed at 40 CFR 52.21(b)(23)(i) have a SER of zero (0) tons/year. 


1. SER also means any emissions rate or any net emissions increase associated with a major stationary source or major modification which would construct within 10 km of a Class I area and have an impact on such area equal to or greater than 1 μg/m3, 24-hour average.








2.3. Definition of Major Modification


“Major modifications” at major stationary sources are also subject to PSD review.  According to Rule 
62-210.200(Definitions), F.A.C., Major Modification (of a Major Stationary Source) is defined as follows:


(a) Any physical change in or change in the method of operation of a major stationary source that would result in a significant emissions increase of a PSD pollutant and a significant net emissions increase of that pollutant from the major stationary source.  (Refer to SERs in Table 2 above) 


(b) Any significant emissions increase from any emissions units or net emissions increase at a major stationary source that is significant for volatile organic compounds or nitrogen oxides shall be considered significant for ozone.  (Refer to SERs in Table 2)


(c) through (d).  These paragraphs are not relevant to this review.


For a major modification of an existing major stationary source, the review must include a BACT determination for any PSD pollutant that exceeds the respective SER.  The review must include demonstrations that the project will not cause or contribute to a violation of an AAQS or increment and that the project will not adversely affect AQRVs.  


GHGs becomes subject to regulation at a major modification if project emissions as CO2e are greater than 75,000 tons/year and mass GHGs exceed zero tons/year.  Consistent with the previously mentioned Supreme Court Opinion and EPA Implementation Guidance, if a project does not trigger PSD for pollutants other than GHGs then PSD is not triggered by GHGs regardless of emissions or emission increases.


2.4. Definitions of Baseline Actual Emissions and Projected Actual Emissions


To determine whether the project causes net emissions increases equal to or greater than the respective SER (triggering PSD) requires a comparison of recent “baseline actual emissions” with future “projected actual emissions”.  According to Rule 62-210.200(Definitions), F.A.C., as applicable to an existing cement plant:


“Baseline Actual Emissions” means, for an existing emissions unit (other than an electric utility steam generating unit), baseline actual emissions means the average rate, in tons per year, at which the emissions unit actually emitted the pollutant during any consecutive 24-month period selected by the owner or operator within the 10-year period immediately preceding the date a complete permit application is received by the Department, except that the 10-year period shall not include any period earlier than November 15, 1990.


“Projected Actual Emissions” means the maximum annual rate, in tons/year, at which an existing emissions unit is projected to emit a PSD pollutant in any one of the 5 years following the date the unit resumes regular operation after the project, or in any one of the 10 years following that date, if the project involves increasing the emissions unit's design capacity or its potential to emit that PSD pollutant and full utilization of the unit would result in a significant emissions increase or a significant net emissions increase at the major stationary source.  One year is one 12-month period.   In determining the projected actual emissions, the Department:


(a) Shall consider all relevant information, including historical operational data, the company’s own representations, the company’s expected business activity and the company’s highest projections of business activity, the company’s filings with the State or Federal regulatory authorities, and compliance plans or orders, including consent orders; and


(b) Shall include fugitive emissions to the extent quantifiable and emissions associated with startups and shutdowns; and


(c) Shall exclude that portion of the unit's emissions following the project that an existing unit could have accommodated during the consecutive 24-month period used to establish the baseline actual emissions and that are also unrelated to the particular project including any increased utilization due to product demand growth; or


(d) In lieu of using the method set out in paragraphs (a) through (c) above, may be directed by the owner or operator to use the emissions unit’s potential to emit, in tons per year.


2.5. Historical Operational Data and Highest Projections of Business Activity


Table 3, includes the historical clinker production and SO2 emission data for the period 2004-2013.  Soon after the facility began operation in 2003, it reached its original permitted production limit of 839,500 tons/year of clinker.  The limit was increased to 965,425 tons/year by a permit modification in 2005.  


[bookmark: _Ref410292399]Table 3.  Yearly SO2 Emissions at SAC.


			Year


			Clinker Production (Tons)


			SO2 (Tons)





			2004


			757,157


			3.3





			2005


			790,968


			13.9





			2006


			844,314


			14.2





			2007


			845,390


			7.8





			2008


			673,808


			7.6





			2009


			385,277


			5.45





			2010


			441,701


			2.38





			2011


			345,089


			3.23





			2012


			399,696


			5.53





			2013


			477,127


			6.82








Thereafter, the plant was able to achieve 91% capacity utilization in an environment of very high demand in Florida, which was so great that much of the demand was satisfied by importation from overseas operations.  Demand greatly slackened in 2008 and stabilized at about half of the plant capacity.  


Recovery in utilization at the Branford Cement Plant and other Florida cement plants was further suppressed by the startup of new kilns in Newberry, Sumterville and Brooksville during the period 2008-2010.  During 2013 there was a noticeable bump upwards in utilization of more than 38% relative to 2011.


Because cement kilns operate most efficiently near their design capacities, the Branford Cement Plant is operated for a period of time relatively close to full short term capacity followed by a shutdown of roughly equal time.  


Figure 7 is a historical summary and future projection of U.S. portland cement consumption and annual rates of increase based on Ed Sullivan’s (Portland Cement Association) “World of Concrete Forecast” as of January 2014.  Link to Cement Outlook  According to the PCA Fall 2014 forecast:	Comment by Max Lee: I appreciate the use of citation for  this reference.


PCA’s cement volume forecast remains essentially unchanged since the fall forecast of 2013.  The United States’ cement market is expected to grow 8.2% in 2014, followed by similar rates of growth in 2015 and 2016.  
Link to PCA Forecasts 


The Department also notes that there has been a decline in fossil fuel prices (including coal) and greater use of alternative fuels by the industry, including SAC.  These factors provide further stimulus to economic growth and cement production.


Using PCA’s nation-wide projected consumption growth and assuming that SAC will maintain its present market share the Department believes that by 2017, cement production from SAC will have recovered to the levels achieved in 2006-2007.   These values are close to the practical production limits given reasonable downtime.  In 2018, it is likely that production from the plant will be effectively “sold out”.  With best operation and effort, the plant may actually be capable of producing about 900,000 tons/year of clinker compared with the permitted production limit of 965,425 tons/year. 


[image: ]


[bookmark: _Ref410387071]Figure 7.  Historical and Projected U.S. Portland Cement Consumption Millions of Metric Tonnes/Year. 


2.6. Baseline Actual SO2 Emissions from SAC


Refer to Table 3.  The baseline SO2 period for the SAC plant selected by FDEP and approved by SAC is 2006-2007 when production was at its greatest.  Although the period 2005-2006 indicated greater average SO2 emissions than 2006-2007, the Department is recommending that the more recent period be used to establish the baseline.  The reason is that 2006 was the first year following implementation of a 15% production increase authorized on March 15, 2005 by Department 
Permit No. 1210465-011-AC .


The same permit authorized installation of a permanent hydrated lime [Ca(OH)2] injection system for added SO2 control and a selective non-catalytic reduction (SNCR) system for nitrogen oxides (NOX) control.  The SNCR ammonia-based system also made it possible to achieve greater production because it made it easier to comply with the NOX limits using injection of a reagent rather than relying strictly on more difficult staged combustion techniques.


SO2 emissions were 14.2 and 7.8 tons during 2006 and 2007, respectively.  The selected 24-month period is January 1, 2006 thought December 31, 2007.  The average, and therefore, the baseline actual SO2 emissions were 11.0 tons/year at an average production rate of 844,852 tons/year of clinker.


2.7. Projected Actual SO2 Emissions from SAC


Projected actual emissions should be based on the future year during which production and SO2 emissions will be the greatest in the 5-year period (2016-2020) after implementation of the requested emission limit and averaging period.  As stated above, plant production will likely be “sold out” in the foreseeable future and realistically may reach 900,000 tons of annual clinker production within the period 2016-2020, considering realistic downtimes and outages.  


To calculate an initial emission factor that might be used to project future emissions, the Department added all emissions measured by the SO2 CEMS (in pounds) between 2006 and 2013 and divided by the clinker production from the same period.  The resulting emission factor is 0.024 lb SO2/ton clinker.  The permitted emission limit is 0.20 lb/ton clinker on a 3-hour basis.  It is noted that since the first year of operation of the kiln (2003), annual emissions have always been substantially less than 40 tons/year, which is the SER for SO2.



Table 4 contains estimates of projected actual emissions prior to corrections (deductions) for demand growth and (additions) due to possible decreased (or more efficient) use of hydrated lime.  Assuming a linear future relationship between SO2 emissions and production and an emission factor of 0.024 lb/ton of clinker, uncorrected projected actual emissions will actually be reduced by 0.2 tons/year compared with the baseline years (despite an increase in production).  This apparent reduction is simply the result of the manner by which these specific rules operate.  The correction for demand growth would subtract a further 0.7 tons/year from the projection in Table 4.  


[bookmark: _Ref404634136]Table 4.  Estimates of Baseline, Uncorrected Future Emissions and Emissions Increases at SAC.


			Parameter


			Baseline Actual Emissions 1
tons/year


			Projected Actual Emissions 2
tons/year


			Emissions Increase
tons/year





			SO2


			11.0


			10.8


			-0.2





			Production


			844,852 (clinker)


			900,000 (clinker)


			





			1. [bookmark: _Ref404682466]Baseline Actual Emissions (BAEs) for SO2 based on 1/2006 to 12/2007.  


2. Uncorrected future emissions based on historical emission factors and highest projections of generation for SAC.








Refer to Table 5, which contains the SO2 emission limits, averaging periods and highest annual emissions during recent years from all operating cement kilns in Florida.  


[bookmark: _Ref410676842]Table 5.  SO2 Emission Standards and Highest Reported Annual Emissions for Operating Kilns in Florida.


			Facility ID


			Site Name


			SO2 Limits


			Highest annual SO2 Emissions during 2009-2013
(tons/year)





			


			


			lb/ton-C


			lb/hr


			Averaging Period


			





			0010087


			Argos Newberry Cement


			Kiln 1


			0.16


			17.7


			24 hours


			2.9





			


			


			Kiln 2


			0.28


			35


			24 hours


			10.9





			0250014


			Miami Cement Plant


			0.5


			81


			24 hours Block


			29.5





			0250020


			Tarmac-Pennsuco Complex


			0.5


			320


			24 hours


			10.0





			0530021


			Cemex South Brooksville


			Kiln 1


			~0.96


			50.0


			3-hour test/year


			26.6





			


			


			Kiln 2


			0.185


			28.8


			24 hours


			10.0





			1190042


			Sumterville Cement Plant


			0.20


			25


			24 hours


			17.8





			New Kilns


			NSPS - kilns constructed 6/16/2008


			0.4


			


			30 days


			





			1210465


			SAC Branford


			Present


			0.20


			24


			3 hours


			6.8





			


			


			Proposed


			0.183


			22


			24 hours (proposed)


			








It is noteworthy that no kiln in Florida even emits SO2 at a level equal to or greater than the applicable SER of 40 tons/year.  All but one kiln have a greater SO2 emission limit and all have a longer averaging time than the SAC kiln.  The greatest annual emissions measured at any Florida kiln during the most recent 5-year period (2009-2013) were from the (Titan America) Tarmac Pennsuco kiln, which is more than twice the size of the SAC kiln.  


The Department also included the latest SO2 emission standards applicable to newly constructed cement kilns.  The SO2 standard was promulgated by EPA in 2010 and is found within 40 Code of Federal Regulation (CFR), part 60, Subpart F – Standards of Performance for Portland Cement Plants.  Link to Subpart F  Most Florida kilns, including the SAC kiln, have BACT-based SO2 emissions standards that are much stricter than recent Subpart F.


According to the company, the approval of request for a lower emission rate coupled with a longer averaging time will not result in substantial changes in their methods of operation. The company states that they intend to keep all of the hydrated lime injection equipment in place and use it whenever a spike in SO2 is detected to continuously comply with SO2 limits.  The advantages of the revised SO2 limit would be, more efficient use of hydrated lime and fewer kin system shut downs and startups. This would not only reduce overall emissions by SAC due to fewer system shut down and startups but also improve the quality of the product.  A reasonable and still conservative estimate is that elimination of hydrated lime injection would increase emissions by 5 tons/year.  Continuing its use (as planned), but with a longer averaging period and lower limit will imperceptibly change annual emissions.  All estimates of emission increases are much less than the SER of 40 tons/year.  


Refer to the appendix for a further discussion of SO2 emissions from SAC and the role of the existing hydrated lime injection system.


Table 6 contains estimates of projected emissions post corrections (deductions) for demand growth and (additions) due to possible decreased use of hydrated lime.  


[bookmark: _Ref410394428]Table 6.  Estimates of Baseline, Projected Actual Emissions and Emissions Increases at SAC.


			Parameter


			Baseline Actual Emissions 1
tons/year


			Projected Actual Emissions 2,3
tons/year


			Emissions Increase
tons/year





			SO2


			11.0


			10.1 (+5)4


			4.1





			Production


			844,852 (clinker)


			900,000 (clinker)


			





			1. Baseline Actual Emissions (BAEs) for SO2 based on 1/2006 to 12/2007.  


2. Corrected future emissions based on historical emission factors and highest projections of generation for SAC.


3. 0.7 tons/year subtracted because they are accounted for by demand growth.


4. 5 tons/year were added as the conservative effect of a possible reduction in hydrated lime injection.








According to Table 6 the project does not constitute a Major Modification as defined in Rule 62-210.200 (Definitions), F.A.C. and does not trigger PSD.  


2.8. Department Conclusion


Annual SO2 emissions from SAC will remain less than 40 tons/year.  If such low emissions could have been projected prior to construction of the project, it would not have been necessary to conduct a PSD review or BACT determination for SO2.


By establishing a 24-hour averaging period for SO2 emissions, SAC will have the same averaging time as all of the kilns built in Florida during the last 20 years (before and after SAC) and will also have a more stringent SO2 limit than required at new cement plants by the 2010 federal cement SO2 rule contained in 40 CFR 60, Subpart F.


For reference, SAC will be subject to a very low hydrogen chloride (HCl) emission concentration standard of 
3 parts per million, by volume, dry on a 30-day basis.  The requirement is in 40 CFR 63, Subpart LLL - National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants from the Portland Cement Manufacturing Industry (Cement NESHAP).  Link to Cement NESHAP  Adherence to the HCl standard will likely further suppress SO2 emissions.  


The BACT limit of SO2 will be revised from 0.20 lb/ton of clinker (equivalent to 24 lb/hr) with a 3-hour averaging time, to 0.183 lb/ton of clinker (equivalent to 22 lb/hr) with a 24-hour averaging time.  


4.  PRELIMINARY DETERMINATION


The Department makes a preliminary determination that the proposed project will comply with all applicable state and federal air pollution regulations as conditioned by the draft permit.  This determination is based on a technical review of the complete application, reasonable assurances provided by the applicant, and the conditions specified in the draft permit.  No air quality modeling analysis is required because the project does not result in a significant increase in emissions.  Pawan Kumar Subramaniam is the project engineer responsible for reviewing the application and drafting the permit.  Additional details of this analysis may be obtained by contacting the project engineer by e-mail at Pawan.Subramaniam@dep.state.fl.us or at the Department’s Office of Permitting and Compliance at Mail Station #5505, 2600 Blair Stone Road, Tallahassee, Florida  32399-2400.








TECHNICAL EVALUATION AND PRELIMINARY DETERMINATION








Suwannee American Cement, LLC	Air Permit No. 1210465-034-AC (PSD-FL-259I)


Branford Cement Plant	SO2 Emission Standard


Page 13 of 14


Continuous emission monitoring systems (CEMS) located in the main kiln/raw mill stack measure and record emissions of carbon monoxide (CO), nitrogen oxides (NOX), sulfur dioxide (SO2) and total hydrocarbons (THC).  A continuous opacity monitoring system (COMS) measures and records the opacity of the flue gas exhaust in the in-line raw mill/kiln stack.  The baghouse inlet temperature is maintained at a level less than that of the most recent compliance stack test to prevent de-novo dioxin/furan formation.  


The present limit on the SAC kiln is very low and has a very short averaging period of 3 hours.  Table 8 is a summary of the current and proposed SO2 emission limits for the SAC kiln. 


[bookmark: _Ref410715501]Table 8.  Breakdown of SOo2 Limits (Current and Proposed)


			SO2 Limits


			Permitted emission limit Emission Factor
(lb/ton clinker)


			Mass Rate
(lb/hour)


			Averaging Period
(hours)


			Potential to Emit
(tons/year)





			Current


			0.20


			24


			3


			96.5





			Proposed


			0.183


			22


			24


			88.3








Refer to Figure 8.  During normal operations and with typical raw materials, SO2 emissions are very low averaging 2 lb/hr.  This scenario represents almost all of the operating time for the kiln.  


[image: C:\Users\SUBRAM~1\AppData\Local\Temp\SNAGHTML697af73.PNG]


[bookmark: _Ref410716037]Figure 8.  SO2 Emissions from the SAC Kiln under Normal Operation (a little higher than typical). During the 2009-2014 period, 90 percent of SO2


Typical hourly emissions values during normal operation are typically less than 5 pounds per hour (lb/hour) and less than 0.054 lb/ton clinker compared with the permit limits of 24 lb/hour and 0.20 lb/ton clinker, respectively.  Real time summaries of the most recent emission data from the kiln are available at the company web link at:  http://www.suwanneecement.com/liveemissions.html  When accessed on February 3, 2015, SO2 emissions were effectively zero (time stamp: 8:31 a.m.).  


Occasionally the sulfide impurities in the limestone are present, but are not detected until SO2 emissions increase as detected by the SO2 CEMS.  Even then, the raw mill typically scrubs out the SO2 generated within the preheater from roasting of pyrite.  However, if the raw mill is concurrently down, then SO2 emissions can approach or exceed the 3-hour limit unless hydrated lime is introduced. In these situations, t


Refer to Figures 9 and 10.  These represent some of the occasional periods when SO2 emissions increase.


[image: ]


[bookmark: _Ref410717122]Figure 9.  Spike in SO2 Emissions Believed to be caused by Sulfides in Raw Materials.


[image: C:\Users\SUBRAM~1\AppData\Local\Temp\SNAGHTML6967531.PNG]


[bookmark: _Ref410717573]Figure 10.  Spike in SO2 Emissions Believed to be caused by Sulfides in Raw Materials.


In both cases, SO2 emissions are nearly zero for prolonged periods of time, including the time before and after that represented by the graph.  There is a sudden increase in SO2 that is then promptly suppressed by use of purchased hydrated lime that is introduced at the top of the preheater.  The emissions soon return to near zero and remain at very low levels even after ceasing of hydrated lime injection.


If hydrated lime were not injected, FDEPit is estimatesd that emissions would peak at about 100 lb/hour.  At a duration of about 5 hours, a reasonable estimate is that less than 500 more pounds of SO2 would escape compared with emissions when using the hydrated lime injection system.  Conservatively aAssuming no more than 10 incidents per year, then the addition SO2 escaping would be on the order of 500 pounds per incident or 2.5 tons per year.  As a conservative estimate, the Department assumes that actual SO2 emissions will increase by no more than 5 tons per /year if the emission limit is lower, the averaging time is increased, and SAC no longer activates the hydrated lime injection system.	Comment by Max Lee: Please provide details of calculation.


In fact, SAC will continue to use the hydrated lime system to comply with the 24-hour standard that is lower than the present standard.  Most likely there will be an imperceptible increase in annual SO2 emissions.
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From: Dr. Max Lee
To: Subramaniam, Pawan
Subject: 624-14-08 RE: MODIFICATION APPLICATION NO. 1210465-034-AC, SUWANNEE AMERICAN CEMENT
Date: Monday, February 16, 2015 1:22:35 PM


Pawan,
Can you send me the Word version for me to send you our comments?
 
 


From: Subramaniam, Pawan [mailto:Pawan.Subramaniam@dep.state.fl.us] 
Sent: Thursday, February 05, 2015 10:05 AM
To: tomm@suwanneecement.com
Cc: krishnac@suwanneecement.com; Dr. Max Lee; Read, David
Subject: RE: MODIFICATION APPLICATION NO. 1210465-034-AC, SUWANNEE AMERICAN CEMENT
 
Hi Tom (Krishna and Max):
 
John Dawson and I enjoyed meeting you and Krishna during our recent visit to your facility.
 
The Department has prepared very preliminary drafts of the permit and evaluation to change to a
 24-hours averaging time for SO2 compliance.
 
Please review these documents and give me a call to discuss any changes or clarifications required
 so that we can promptly provide you with a notice for publication.
 
I would greatly appreciate it if you could please get back to me within the next week.
 
Thank you.
 
 
Pawan Kumar Subramaniam, Ph.D.
Florida Department of Environmental Protection
Division of Air Resource Management
Office of Permitting and Compliance
850-717-9033
Pawan.Subramaniam@dep.state.fl.us
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From: Dr. Max Lee
To: Subramaniam, Pawan
Cc: tomm@suwanneecement.com; krishnac@suwanneecement.com; Linero, Alvaro; Read, David
Subject: 624-14-08 RE: MODIFICATION APPLICATION NO. 1210465-034-AC, SUWANNEE AMERICAN CEMENT
Date: Wednesday, January 28, 2015 5:24:33 PM
Attachments: 201501281725.pdf


Hi Pawan,
 
You are correct in that the application is for an AC permit.
I have attached a revised PE seal page.
I will send this to you by mail asap.
 
As well, I will make sure to get you the RO signature page asap.
 
Best,
Max
 
 
Max Lee, Ph.D., P.E.
President
www.kooglerassociates.com
Koogler and Associates, Inc.


4014 NW 13th st.
Gainesville, FL 32609
Office 352 377-5822
Cell 352 318 4450
mlee@kooglerassociates.com
 
 
 
 
 
 


From: Subramaniam, Pawan [mailto:Pawan.Subramaniam@dep.state.fl.us] 
Sent: Wednesday, January 28, 2015 4:47 PM
To: Dr. Max Lee
Cc: tomm@suwanneecement.com; krishnac@suwanneecement.com; Linero, Alvaro; Read, David
Subject: FW: MODIFICATION APPLICATION NO. 1210465-034-AC, SUWANNEE AMERICAN CEMENT
 
Dear Dr. Lee,
 
The reason I called your office this morning, was to follow up with you about your application.
 


1.       Page 6 of the application (PE statement) states that this is an application to obtain a Title V
 air operation permit(3). Would you please confirm if that it is indeed the case or you meant
 to indicate that this is an application to obtain an air construction permit (4)?
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2.       I noticed that I do not have a signature for the Owner/Authorized Representative Statement
 (Page 4). Would you please submit a signed statement?
 


I would greatly appreciate it if you could have this information sent to me by Wednesday,
 02/04/2015 to avoid sending a Request for Additional Information.
 
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


From: Subramaniam, Pawan 
Sent: Tuesday, January 13, 2015 11:56 AM
To: 'mlee@kooglerassociates.com'
Cc: Linero, Alvaro
Subject: MODIFICATION APPLICATION NO. 1210465-034-AC, SUWANNEE AMERICAN CEMENT
 
Dear Dr. Lee,
 
I am Pawan Subramaniam, currently reviewing your modification application. I noticed that on Page
 6, under the Professional Engineer Statement, you indicated that this is an application to obtain a
 Title V air operation permit (3). I wanted to check with you to make sure if that was indeed the case
 or you meant to indicate that this is an air construction permit (4).
 
Thanks,
Pawan Subramaniam
 
Pawan Kumar Subramaniam, Ph.D.
Florida Department of Environmental Protection
Division of Air Resource Management
Office of Permitting and Compliance
850-717-9033
Pawan.Subramaniam@dep.state.fl.us
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From: Read, David
To: Scearce, Lynn
Cc: Koerner, Jeff; Linero, Alvaro; Subramaniam, Pawan
Subject: FW: 624-14-08 AC Permit Application for Facility ID 1210465
Date: Monday, January 12, 2015 7:53:33 AM
Attachments: 624-14-08 - COMPLETE SUBMISSION- FINAL.PDF


ATT00001.htm


Lynn assign to Pawan with Al assisting.
 
David
 


From: David Read [mailto:dlread58@yahoo.com] 
Sent: Monday, January 12, 2015 7:31 AM
To: Read, David
Subject: Fwd: 624-14-08 AC Permit Application for Facility ID 1210465
 


Sent from my iPhone


Begin forwarded message:


From: aalinero@comcast.net
Date: January 9, 2015 at 8:08:24 PM EST
To: "Read, David" <dlread58@yahoo.com>
Cc: jeff koerner <jeff.koerner@dep.state.fl.us>, alvaro.linero@dep.state.fl.us
Subject: Fwd: 624-14-08 AC Permit Application for Facility ID 1210465


Hey David.
 
I think Max Lee had my AWMA email when he sent this application.
 
This looks like the SO2 averaging time application.
 
Maybe you can assign someone (Dr. D or Dr. S.)  I can consult with that
 person.


I think you had some ideas on converting 3 to equivalent 24-hour
 averaging.


This application does not include the CPMS and COMS request.


Thanks.
 
Al.
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624-14-08  



 
 



  



January 9, 2015 



Via email only 



 



Alvaro A. Linero, P.E. 
Alvaro.Linero@dep.state.fl.us   



Florida Department of Environmental Protection 
Division of Air Resource Management 



Office of Permitting and Compliance 
 2600 Blair Stone Road, MS 5500 
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-2400 



 



 



Subject:    Air Construction Permit – SO2 Averaging Period, Facility AIRS ID 1210465 
Suwannee American Cement Branford Plant  



 



Dear Al, 



This cover letter is provided for the enclosed application that relates to a change in the averaging period 



that is used for compliance of the SO2 emissions from EU004 at the Suwannee American Cement – 



Branford Plant. In addition to the Department’s associated construction permit application, an appendix 



that is also enclosed accompanies this submission. If you have questions or comments please contact 



me at your earliest convenience. I look forward to working with you and your staff on this project. 



Best regards, 



 



Sincerely, 



 
 
Max Lee, Ph.D., P.E. 
Koogler and Associates, Inc. 
 
Cc: Tom Messer, SAC (tomm@vcsmc.com ) 
Krishna Cole, SAC (krishnac@suwanneecement.com) 
John Phillips, FDEP (John.D.Phillips@dep.state.fl.us) 
Leslie Maybin, FDEP (Leslie.Maybin@dep.state.fl.us) 
Richard Rachal, FDEP (Richard.Rachal@dep.state.fl.us) 
Karl Seltzer, Koogler (kseltzer@kooglerassociates.com) 



 



Enc: Application 



4014      NW      13th          STREET 



GAINESVILLE, FL       32609-1923 



www.kooglerassociates.com 



352/377-5822      FAX/377-5822 
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Division of Air Resource Management 



APPLICATION FOR AIR PERMIT - LONG FORM 



DEP Form No. 62-210.900(1) – Form     



Effective: 3/16/08  1 



 



 



I.  APPLICATION INFORMATION 



Air Construction Permit – Use this form to apply for an air construction permit: 



 For any required purpose at a facility operating under a federally enforceable state air operation 



permit (FESOP) or Title V air operation permit; 



 For a proposed project subject to prevention of significant deterioration (PSD) review, nonattainment 



new source review, or maximum achievable control technology (MACT); 



 To assume a restriction on the potential emissions of one or more pollutants to escape a requirement 



such as PSD review, nonattainment new source review, MACT, or Title V; or 



 To establish, revise, or renew a plantwide applicability limit (PAL). 



Air Operation Permit – Use this form to apply for: 



 An initial federally enforceable state air operation permit (FESOP); or 



 An initial, revised, or renewal Title V air operation permit. 



To ensure accuracy, please see form instructions. 



Identification of Facility 



1. Facility Owner/Company Name: Suwannee American Cement, LLC 



2. Site Name: Branford Cement Plant 



3. Facility Identification Number: 1210465 



4. Facility Location... 



 Street Address or Other Locator: 5117 US Highway 27 



 City: Branford County: Suwannee  Zip Code: 32008-2463 



5. Relocatable Facility? 



  Yes  No 



6. Existing Title V Permitted Facility? 



  Yes  No 



Application Contact 



1. Application Contact Name:  Max Lee, Ph.D, P.E. 



2. Application Contact Mailing Address... 



 Organization/Firm:  Koogler and Associates, Inc 



 Street Address:  4014 NW 13
th



 Street 



 City:  Gainesville State:  Florida Zip Code:  32609 



3. Application Contact Telephone Numbers... 



 Telephone: ( 352) 377 - 5822    ext. 13    Fax: (352) 377 - 7158    



4. Application Contact E-mail Address:  mlee@kooglerassociates.com 



Application Processing Information (DEP Use) 



1.  Date of Receipt of Application:  3.  PSD Number (if applicable): 



2.  Project Number(s): 4.  Siting Number (if applicable): 
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Purpose of Application 



This application for air permit is being submitted to obtain:  (Check one) 



Air Construction Permit  



 Air construction permit. 



    Air construction permit to establish, revise, or renew a plantwide applicability limit (PAL). 



    Air construction permit to establish, revise, or renew a plantwide applicability limit (PAL), 



and separate air construction permit to authorize construction or modification of one or 



more emissions units covered by the PAL. 



Air Operation Permit  



    Initial Title V air operation permit. 



 Title V air operation permit revision. 



   Title V air operation permit renewal. 



    Initial federally enforceable state air operation permit (FESOP) where professional engineer 



(PE) certification is required. 



    Initial federally enforceable state air operation permit (FESOP) where professional engineer 



(PE) certification is not required. 



Air Construction Permit and Revised/Renewal Title V Air Operation Permit  



(Concurrent Processing) 



    Air construction permit and Title V permit revision, incorporating the proposed project. 



    Air construction permit and Title V permit renewal, incorporating the proposed project.  



Note: By checking one of the above two boxes, you, the applicant, are 



requesting concurrent processing pursuant to Rule 62-213.405, F.A.C.  In 



such case, you must also check the following box: 



    I hereby request that the department waive the processing time 



requirements of the air construction permit to accommodate the processing 



time frames of the Title V air operation permit. 



Application Comment  



This application is to adjust the averaging period of the allowable SO2 emissions from 



EU004.  The applicant requests that the original PSD permit establish the SO2 3-hr limit 



to be revised and congruent to this revision. 
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Scope of Application  



Emissions 



Unit ID 



Number 



 



Description of Emissions Unit 



Air 



Permit 



Type 



Air 



Permit 



Proc. Fee 



004 
In line kiln/raw mill controlled by baghouse – 



main stack 
AV  



    



    



    



    



    



    



    



    



    



    



    



    



    



    



 



Application Processing Fee  



Check one:     Attached - Amount: $     Not Applicable 
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Owner/Authorized Representative Statement  



Complete if applying for an air construction permit or an initial FESOP. 



1. Owner/Authorized Representative Name : Mr. Tom Messer, Plant Manager 



   



2. Owner/Authorized Representative Mailing Address... 



 Organization/Firm:  Suwannee American Cement, LLC 



Street Address:  5117 US Hwy 27 



City:  Branford State:  Florida Zip Code:  32008 



3. Owner/Authorized Representative Telephone Numbers... 



 Telephone: (386) 935 –5000    Fax:  (386)  935 -5080      



4. Owner/Authorized Representative E-mail Address:  tomm@suwanneecement.com 



5. Owner/Authorized Representative Statement: 



I, the undersigned, am the owner or authorized representative of the corporation, partnership, or 



other legal entity submitting this air permit application.  To the best of my knowledge, the 



statements made in this application are true, accurate and complete, and any estimates of 



emissions reported in this application are based upon reasonable techniques for calculating 



emissions.  I understand that a permit, if granted by the department, cannot be transferred without 



authorization from the department. 



 



      



Signature Date 
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Application Responsible Official Certification  



Complete if applying for an initial, revised, or renewal Title V air operation permit or 



concurrent processing of an air construction permit and revised or renewal Title V air 



operation permit.  If there are multiple responsible officials, the “application responsible 



official” need not be the “primary responsible official.” 



1. Application Responsible Official Name:  
   



2. Application Responsible Official Qualification (Check one or more of the following 



options, as applicable): 



 For a corporation, the president, secretary, treasurer, or vice-president of the corporation in 



charge of a principal business function, or any other person who performs similar policy or 



decision-making functions for the corporation, or a duly authorized representative of such 



person if the representative is responsible for the overall operation of one or more 



manufacturing, production, or operating facilities applying for or subject to a permit under 



Chapter 62-213, F.A.C. 



    For a partnership or sole proprietorship, a general partner or the proprietor, respectively. 



    For a municipality, county, state, federal, or other public agency, either a principal executive 



officer or ranking elected official. 



    The designated representative at an Acid Rain source, CAIR source, or Hg Budget source. 



3. Application Responsible Official Mailing Address... 



 Organization/Firm:  



Street Address:  



City: State: Zip Code:  



4. Application Responsible Official Telephone Numbers... 



 Telephone:           ext.  Fax:   



5. Application Responsible Official E-mail Address:  



6. Application Responsible Official Certification: 



I, the undersigned, am a responsible official of the Title V source addressed in this air permit 



application.  I hereby certify, based on information and belief formed after reasonable inquiry, 



that the statements made in this application are true, accurate and complete and that, to the best 



of my knowledge, any estimates of emissions reported in this application are based upon 



reasonable techniques for calculating emissions.  The air pollutant emissions units and air 



pollution control equipment described in this application will be operated and maintained so as to 



comply with all applicable standards for control of air pollutant emissions found in the statutes of 



the State of Florida and rules of the Department of Environmental Protection and revisions 



thereof and all other applicable requirements identified in this application to which the Title V 



source is subject.  I understand that a permit, if granted by the department, cannot be transferred 



without authorization from the department, and I will promptly notify the department upon sale or 



legal transfer of the facility or any permitted emissions unit.  Finally, I certify that the facility and 



each emissions unit are in compliance with all applicable requirements to which they are subject, 



except as identified in compliance plan(s) submitted with this application. 



      



 Signature Date 
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Professional Engineer Certification 



1. Professional Engineer Name:  Max Lee, Ph.D. P.E. 



Registration Number:  58091 



2. Professional Engineer Mailing Address... 



 Organization/Firm:  Koogler and Associates, Inc. 



Street Address:  4014 NW 13
th



 Street 



City: Gainesville  State:  Florida Zip Code:  32609 



3. Professional Engineer Telephone Numbers... 



 Telephone: (352) 377-5822     ext.13     Fax: (352) 377-7158     



4. Professional Engineer E-mail Address:  mlee@kooglerassociates.com 



5. Professional Engineer Statement: 



I, the undersigned, hereby certify, except as particularly noted herein*, that: 



(1) To the best of my knowledge, there is reasonable assurance that the air pollutant emissions 



unit(s) and the air pollution control equipment described in this application for air permit, when 



properly operated and maintained, will comply with all applicable standards for control of air 



pollutant emissions found in the Florida Statutes and rules of the Department of Environmental 



Protection; and 



(2) To the best of my knowledge, any emission estimates reported or relied on in this application 



are true, accurate, and complete and are either based upon reasonable techniques available for 



calculating emissions or, for emission estimates of hazardous air pollutants not regulated for an 



emissions unit addressed in this application, based solely upon the materials, information and 



calculations submitted with this application.  



(3) If the purpose of this application is to obtain a Title V air operation permit (check here , if 



so), I further certify that each emissions unit described in this application for air permit, when 



properly operated and maintained, will comply with the applicable requirements identified in this 



application to which the unit is subject, except those emissions units for which a compliance plan 



and schedule is submitted with this application. 



(4) If the purpose of this application is to obtain an air construction permit (check here  , if so) 



or concurrently process and obtain an air construction permit and a Title V air operation permit 



revision or renewal for one or more proposed new or modified emissions units (check here    , if 



so), I further certify that the engineering features of each such emissions unit described in this 



application have been designed or examined by me or individuals under my direct supervision and 



found to be in conformity with sound engineering principles applicable to the control of emissions 



of the air pollutants characterized in this application. 



(5) If the purpose of this application is to obtain an initial air operation permit or operation 



permit revision or renewal for one or more newly constructed or modified emissions units (check 



here  if so), I further certify that, with the exception of any changes detailed as part of this 



application, each such emissions unit has been constructed or modified in substantial accordance 



with the information given in the corresponding application for air construction permit and with 



all provisions contained in such permit. 



      



Signature Date 



(seal) 





mailto:mlee@kooglerassociates.com
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II.  FACILITY INFORMATION 



A.  GENERAL FACILITY INFORMATION 



Facility Location and Type 



1. Facility UTM Coordinates... 



 Zone 17  321.4 East (km)   



3315.9 North (km)   



2. Facility Latitude/Longitude... 



 Latitude (DD/MM/SS) 2957’45”       



 Longitude (DD/MM/SS) 8251’03”   



3. Governmental 



 Facility Code: 0 



   



4. Facility Status 



 Code: A 



   



5. Facility Major  



 Group SIC Code: 



32 



6. Facility SIC(s): 



3241 



   



7. Facility Comment : None 



   



 



Facility Contact 



1. Facility Contact Name: Krishna C. Cole - Environmental Engineer 



   



2. Facility Contact Mailing Address... 



  Organization/Firm: Suwannee American Cement, LLC 



 Street Address:  5117 US HWY 27 



City: Branford  State: Florida   Zip Code: 32008   



3. Facility Contact Telephone Numbers: 



 Telephone: 386-935-5023     Fax: 386-935-5080       



4. Facility Contact E-mail Address: krishnac@suwanneecement.com    



Facility Primary Responsible Official 



Complete if an “application responsible official” is identified in Section I that is not the 



facility “primary responsible official.”  



1. Facility Primary Responsible Official Name:  
   



2. Facility Primary Responsible Official Mailing Address... 



 Organization/Firm:   



Street Address:   



City:   State:   Zip Code:   



3. Facility Primary Responsible Official Telephone Numbers... 



 Telephone: (   )   -     ext.    Fax: (   )   -      



4. Facility Primary Responsible Official E-mail Address:   





mailto:krishnac@suwanneecement.com
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Facility Regulatory Classifications 



Check all that would apply following completion of all projects and implementation of all 



other changes proposed in this application for air permit.  Refer to instructions to 



distinguish between a “major source” and a “synthetic minor source.” 



1.     Small Business Stationary Source   Unknown 



2.     Synthetic Non-Title V Source 



3.   Title V Source 



4.   Major Source of Air Pollutants, Other than Hazardous Air Pollutants (HAPs) 



5.     Synthetic Minor Source of Air Pollutants, Other than HAPs 



6.   Major Source of Hazardous Air Pollutants (HAPs) 



7.     Synthetic Minor Source of HAPs 



8.   One or More Emissions Units Subject to NSPS (40 CFR Part 60) 



9.     One or More Emissions Units Subject to Emission Guidelines (40 CFR Part 60) 



10.   One or More Emissions Units Subject to NESHAP (40 CFR Part 61 or Part 63) 



11.     Title V Source Solely by EPA Designation (40 CFR 70.3(a)(5)) 



12. Facility Regulatory Classifications Comment: 



Facility is subject to applicable portions of: 



40 CFR 51, 52, 70, 71 – GHG Tailoring Rule 



40 CFR 63 Subpart LLL  



40 CFR 60 Subpart F (superseded by NESHAP Subpart LLL) 



40 CFR 60 Subpart Y 



40 CFR 60 Subpart OOO 



40 CFR 241 



40 CFR 63 Subpart ZZZZ and 40 CFR 60 Subpart IIII as applicable. 



Rules 62-4 through 62-297, F.A.C. ; specifically  62-297.407, F.A.C. for cement plants 
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List of Pollutants Emitted by Facility 



1. Pollutant Emitted 2. Pollutant Classification 3. Emissions Cap 



 [Y or N]? 



PM A N 



PM10 A N 



SO2 A N 



NOx A N 



CO A N 



HAPS A N 



VOC B N 



DIOX B N 



H114 B N 
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B.  EMISSIONS CAPS  



Facility-Wide or Multi-Unit Emissions Caps  



1. Pollutant 



 Subject to 



 Emissions



 Cap   



2. Facility- 



 Wide Cap 



 [Y or N]? 



     (all units)  



3. Emissions 



 Unit ID’s 



 Under Cap 



 (if not all units) 



4. Hourly 



 Cap 



 (lb/hr) 



5. Annual 



 Cap 



 (ton/yr) 



6. Basis for 



 Emissions 



 Cap 



N/A 



           



           



           



           



           



           



           



           



           



           



           



           



7. Facility-Wide or Multi-Unit Emissions Cap Comment:   
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C.  FACILITY ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 



Additional Requirements for All Applications, Except as Otherwise Stated 



1. Facility Plot Plan:  (Required for all permit applications, except Title V air operation permit 



revision applications if this information was submitted to the department within the previous five 



years and would not be altered as a result of the revision being sought) 



     Attached, Document ID:                           Previously Submitted, Date:                



2. Process Flow Diagram(s):  (Required for all permit applications, except Title V air operation 



permit revision applications if this information was submitted to the department within the 



previous five years and would not be altered as a result of the revision being sought) 



     Attached, Document ID:                                  Previously Submitted, Date:                



3. Precautions to Prevent Emissions of Unconfined Particulate Matter:  (Required for all permit 



applications, except Title V air operation permit revision applications if this information was 



submitted to the department within the previous five years and would not be altered as a result of 



the revision being sought) 



     Attached, Document ID:                                  Previously Submitted, Date:                  



Additional Requirements for Air Construction Permit Applications 



1. Area Map Showing Facility Location: 



     Attached, Document ID:    Not Applicable (existing permitted facility) 



2. Description of Proposed Construction, Modification, or Plantwide Applicability Limit 



(PAL): 



     Attached, Document ID:                         Not Applicable (existing permitted facility) 



3. Rule Applicability Analysis: 



     Attached, Document ID:                        Not Applicable (existing permitted facility) 



4. List of Exempt Emissions Units: 



     Attached, Document ID:    Not Applicable 



5. Fugitive Emissions Identification:  



     Attached, Document ID:    Not Applicable 



6. Air Quality Analysis (Rule 62-212.400(7), F.A.C.): 



     Attached, Document ID:     Not Applicable 



7. Source Impact Analysis (Rule 62-212.400(5), F.A.C.): 



     Attached, Document ID:     Not Applicable 



8. Air Quality Impact since 1977 (Rule 62-212.400(4)(e), F.A.C.): 



     Attached, Document ID:     Not Applicable 



9. Additional Impact Analyses (Rules 62-212.400(8) and 62-212.500(4)(e), F.A.C.): 



     Attached, Document ID:     Not Applicable 



10. Alternative Analysis Requirement (Rule 62-212.500(4)(g), F.A.C.): 



     Attached, Document ID:     Not Applicable 
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C.  FACILITY ADDITIONAL INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 



Additional Requirements for FESOP Applications 



1. List of Exempt Emissions Units: 



     Attached, Document ID:     Not Applicable 



Additional Requirements for Title V Air Operation Permit Applications 



1. List of Insignificant Activities:  (Required for initial/renewal applications only) 



   Attached, Document ID:                                  Not Applicable  



2. Identification of Applicable Requirements:  (Required for initial/renewal applications, and for 



revision applications if this information would be changed as a result of the revision being sought) 



   Attached, Document ID:                      



   Not Applicable (revision application with no change in applicable requirements) 



3. Compliance Report and Plan:  (Required for all initial/revision/renewal applications) 



   Attached, Document ID:                     



Note:  A compliance plan must be submitted for each emissions unit that is not in compliance with 



all applicable requirements at the time of application and/or at any time during application 



processing.  The department must be notified of any changes in compliance status during 



application processing. 



4. List of Equipment/Activities Regulated under Title VI:  (If applicable, required for 



initial/renewal applications only) 



     Attached, Document ID:   



     Equipment/Activities Onsite but Not Required to be Individually Listed 



   Not Applicable 



5. Verification of Risk Management Plan Submission to EPA:  (If applicable, required for 



initial/renewal applications only) 



     Attached, Document ID:     Not Applicable  



6. Requested Changes to Current Title V Air Operation Permit: 



   Attached, Document ID:                               Not Applicable  
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C.  FACILITY ADDITIONAL INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 



Additional Requirements for Facilities Subject to Acid Rain, CAIR, or Hg Budget Program 



1. Acid Rain Program Forms: 



Acid Rain Part Application (DEP Form No. 62-210.900(1)(a)): 



    Attached, Document ID:      Previously Submitted, Date:   



  Not Applicable (not an Acid Rain source) 



Phase II NOX Averaging Plan (DEP Form No. 62-210.900(1)(a)1.): 



    Attached, Document ID:      Previously Submitted, Date:   



  Not Applicable 



New Unit Exemption (DEP Form No. 62-210.900(1)(a)2.): 



    Attached, Document ID:      Previously Submitted, Date:   



  Not Applicable 



2. CAIR Part (DEP Form No. 62-210.900(1)(b)): 



    Attached, Document ID:      Previously Submitted, Date:   



  Not Applicable (not a CAIR source) 



Additional Requirements Comment 
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EMISSIONS UNIT INFORMATION 



Section [1] of [1]                In-Line Kiln/Raw Mill 



 



III.  EMISSIONS UNIT INFORMATION 



Title V Air Operation Permit Application - For Title V air operation permitting only, emissions units 



are classified as regulated, unregulated, or insignificant.  If this is an application for an initial, revised or 



renewal Title V air operation permit, a separate Emissions Unit Information Section (including 



subsections A through I as required) must be completed for each regulated and unregulated emissions 



unit addressed in this application.  Some of the subsections comprising the Emissions Unit Information 



Section of the form are optional for unregulated emissions units.  Each such subsection is appropriately 



marked.  Insignificant emissions units are required to be listed at Section II, Subsection C. 



Air Construction Permit or FESOP Application - For air construction permitting or federally 



enforceable state air operation permitting, emissions units are classified as either subject to air permitting 



or exempt from air permitting.  The concept of an “unregulated emissions unit” does not apply.  If this is 



an application for an air construction permit or FESOP, a separate Emissions Unit Information Section 



(including subsections A through I as required) must be completed for each emissions unit subject to air 



permitting addressed in this application for air permit.  Emissions units exempt from air permitting are 



required to be listed at Section II, Subsection C. 



Air Construction Permit and Revised/Renewal Title V Air Operation Permit Application – Where 



this application is used to apply for both an air construction permit and a revised or renewal Title V air 



operation permit, each emissions unit is classified as either subject to air permitting or exempt from air 



permitting for air construction permitting purposes, and as regulated, unregulated, or insignificant for 



Title V air operation permitting purposes.  A separate Emissions Unit Information Section (including 



subsections A through I as required) must be completed for each emissions unit addressed in this 



application that is subject to air construction permitting and for each such emissions unit that is a 



regulated or unregulated unit for purposes of Title V permitting.  (An emissions unit may be exempt from 



air construction permitting but still be classified as an unregulated unit for Title V purposes.)  Emissions 



units classified as insignificant for Title V purposes are required to be listed at Section II, Subsection C. 



If submitting the application form in hard copy, the number of this Emissions Unit Information Section 



and the total number of Emissions Unit Information Sections submitted as part of this application 



must be indicated in the space provided at the top of each page. 
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EMISSIONS UNIT INFORMATION 



Section [1]  of  [1]                In-Line Kiln/Raw Mill 



 



A.  GENERAL EMISSIONS UNIT INFORMATION 



Title V Air Operation Permit Emissions Unit Classification  



1. Regulated or Unregulated Emissions Unit?  (Check one, if applying for an initial, revised 



or renewal Title V air operation permit.  Skip this item if applying for an air construction 



permit or FESOP only.) 



  The emissions unit addressed in this Emissions Unit Information Section is a regulated 



emissions unit. 



    The emissions unit addressed in this Emissions Unit Information Section is an 



unregulated emissions unit. 



Emissions Unit Description and Status 



1. Type of Emissions Unit Addressed in this Section:  (Check one) 



  This Emissions Unit Information Section addresses, as a single emissions unit, a single 



process or production unit, or activity, which produces one or more air pollutants and 



which has at least one definable emission point (stack or vent). 



    This Emissions Unit Information Section addresses, as a single emissions unit, a group 



of process or production units and activities which has at least one definable emission 



point (stack or vent) but may also produce fugitive emissions. 



    This Emissions Unit Information Section addresses, as a single emissions unit, one or 



more process or production units and activities which produce fugitive emissions only.  



2. Description of Emissions Unit Addressed in this Section:  In-Line Kiln/Raw Mill 



3. Emissions Unit Identification Number:  004 



4. Emissions Unit 



 Status Code: 



A 



 



5. Commence 



 Construction  



 Date: 



6/1/00 



6. Initial Startup  



 Date: 



2/17/03 



 



7. Emissions Unit 



 Major Group  



 SIC Code: 32 



 



8. Federal Program Applicability:  (Check all that apply) 



    Acid Rain Unit 



    CAIR Unit 



9. Package Unit: 



 Manufacturer:   Model Number:   



10. Generator Nameplate Rating:   MW 



11. Emissions Unit Comment:  This application is to adjust the averaging period of the 



allowable SO2 emissions from a 3-hr averaging period to a 24-hr averaging period.   
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EMISSIONS UNIT INFORMATION 



Section [1] of [1]                In-Line Kiln/Raw Mill 



 



Emissions Unit Control Equipment/Method:  Control 1  of  4 



1. Control Equipment/Method Description: 



Baghouse – High Temperature  



2. Control Device or Method Code: 016 



Emissions Unit Control Equipment/Method:  Control 2  of  4 



1. Control Equipment/Method Description: 



SNCR 



2. Control Device or Method Code: 107 



Emissions Unit Control Equipment/Method:  Control 3  of  4 



1. Control Equipment/Method Description: 



Hydrated Lime Injection (injected at kiln feed with Poldos) 



2. Control Device or Method Code: 041 



 



Emissions Unit Control Equipment/Method:  Control 4  of  4 



1. Control Equipment/Method Description: 



Multistaged Combustion 



2. Control Device or Method Code: 025 
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EMISSIONS UNIT INFORMATION 



Section [1]  of  [1]                In-Line Kiln/Raw Mill 



 



B.  EMISSIONS UNIT CAPACITY INFORMATION 



(Optional for unregulated emissions units.) 



Emissions Unit Operating Capacity and Schedule 



1. Maximum Process or Throughput Rate:   



210 TPH; 1,684,578 TPY dry preheater feed and fly ash (consecutive 12-month period, 



fed directly to the calciner) 



 



97 lb/consecutive 12 month period of Mercury (by mass, as Hg) introduced into 



pyroprocessing system 



2. Maximum Production Rate:   



120 TPH; 965,425 TPY clinker (consecutive 12-month period) 



3. Maximum Heat Input Rate:  458 million Btu/hr (kiln and calciner) 



                                                     32 million Btu/hr (air heater) 



4. Maximum Incineration Rate:  pounds/hr 



   tons/day 



5. Requested Maximum Operating Schedule: 



 24 hours/day 7 days/week 



 52 weeks/year 8,760 hours/year 



6. Operating Capacity/Schedule Comment: 



Based on Permit No. 1210465-019-AV.   
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EMISSIONS UNIT INFORMATION 



Section [1] of [1]                In-Line Kiln/Raw Mill 



 



C.  EMISSION POINT (STACK/VENT) INFORMATION 



(Optional for unregulated emissions units.) 



Emission Point Description and Type 



1. Identification of Point on Plot Plan or 



 Flow Diagram:  Kiln/Raw Mill 



2. Emission Point Type Code: 



  1 



3. Descriptions of Emission Points Comprising this Emissions Unit for VE Tracking: 



   



 



4. ID Numbers or Descriptions of Emission Units with this Emission Point in Common: 



   



5. Discharge Type Code: 



  V 



6. Stack Height: 



 250 feet 



7. Exit Diameter: 



 9.42 feet 



8. Exit Temperature: 



 205 F 



9. Actual Volumetric Flow Rate: 



 194,000 acfm 



10. Water Vapor: 



 6.5 % 



11. Maximum Dry Standard Flow Rate: 



  144,000 dscfm 



12. Nonstack Emission Point Height: 



  feet 



13. Emission Point UTM Coordinates... 



 Zone:   East (km):   



 North (km):   



14. Emission Point Latitude/Longitude… 



 Latitude (DD/MM/SS)   



 Longitude (DD/MM/SS)   



15. Emission Point Comment: 
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EMISSIONS UNIT INFORMATION 



Section [1]  of  [1]                In-Line Kiln/Raw Mill 



 



D.  SEGMENT (PROCESS/FUEL) INFORMATION 



Segment Description and Rate:  Segment 1 of 5 



1. Segment Description (Process/Fuel Type): 



Industrial Processes; In-Process Fuel Use; Natural Gas; Cement Kiln/Dryer   



 



2. Source Classification Code (SCC): 



3-90-006-02   



3. SCC Units: 



  Million Cubic Feet Burned 



4. Maximum Hourly Rate: 



0.44 



5. Maximum Annual Rate: 



3,854 



6. Estimated Annual Activity 



 Factor:   



7. Maximum % Sulfur: 



   



8. Maximum % Ash: 



   



9. Million Btu per SCC Unit: 



 1,050   



10. Segment Comment: 



Based on 458 MMBtu/hr (Permit No. 1210465-006-AV): 



  458 MMBtu/hr x MMcf/1,050 MMBtu = 0.44 MMcf/hr 



  0.44 MMcf x 8,760 hr/yr =  3,854 MMcf/yr 



Segment Description and Rate:  Segment 2 of 5 



1. Segment Description (Process/Fuel Type): 



Industrial Processes; In-Process Fuel Use; Bituminous Coal; Cement Kiln/Dryer 



(Bituminous Coal)   



  



 



2. Source Classification Code (SCC): 



3-90-002-01    



3. SCC Units: 



 Tons Burned  



4. Maximum Hourly Rate: 



18.3 



5. Maximum Annual Rate: 



160,300 



6. Estimated Annual Activity 



 Factor:   



7. Maximum % Sulfur: 



1.5 



8. Maximum % Ash:  



10  



9. Million Btu per SCC Unit: 



25 



10. Segment Comment: 



Based on 458 MMBtu/hr (Permit No. 1210465-006-AV): 



  458 MMBtu/hr x tons/25 MMBtu = 18.32 tons/hr 



  18.3 tons/hr x 8,760 hr/yr = approximately 160,300 tons/yr   
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EMISSIONS UNIT INFORMATION 



Section [1]  of  [1]                In-Line Kiln/Raw Mill 



 



D.  SEGMENT (PROCESS/FUEL) INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 



Segment Description and Rate:  Segment 3 of 5 



1. Segment Description (Process/Fuel Type): 



Industrial Processes; In-Process Fuel Use; Coke; General: Coke  



 



 
2. Source Classification Code (SCC): 



3-90-008-99    



3. SCC Units: 



Tons Burned   



4. Maximum Hourly Rate: 



16.4 



5. Maximum Annual Rate: 



143,664 



6. Estimated Annual Activity 



 Factor:   



7. Maximum % Sulfur: 



5 



8. Maximum % Ash:  



  



9. Million Btu per SCC Unit: 



28 



10. Segment Comment: 



Based on 458 MMBtu/hr (Permit No. 1210465-006-AV): 



  458 MMBtu/hr x tons/28 MMBtu = 16.4 tons/hr 



  16.4 tons/hr x 8,760 hr/yr = 143,664 tons/yr    



Segment Description and Rate:  Segment 4 of 5 



1. Segment Description (Process/Fuel Type): 



Industrial Processes; Mineral Products; Cement Manufacturing (Dry Process); 



Preheater/Precalciner Kiln 



2. Source Classification Code (SCC): 



3-05-006-23   



3. SCC Units: 



Tons Clinker Produced   



4. Maximum Hourly Rate: 



120   



5. Maximum Annual Rate: 



965,425   



6. Estimated Annual Activity 



 Factor:   



7. Maximum % Sulfur: 



   



8. Maximum % Ash: 



   



9. Million Btu per SCC Unit: 



   



10. Segment Comment: 



Based on Permit No. 1210465-006-AV.  The Kiln is limited to 210 TPH and 1,684,578 



tons/consecutive 12-mos. of dry flyash or dry preheater feed.   



   



Clinker production is calculated by: 



Clinker production = [(Feed)(Kiln feed LOI factor) + (Fly Ash Injection) + (Fly Ash LOI 



Factor)] 



    Where,  



    -Kiln feed is determined by the Poldos control system 



    -Flyash is determined from the rotary feed system or equivalent 



    -LOI for the kiln feed and flyash is based on a 30 operating-day block average of daily 



     measurements.  (For purposes of this requirement, an operating day is any day that  



     the kiln produces clinker or fires fuel.) 
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EMISSIONS UNIT INFORMATION 



Section [1]  of  [1]                In-Line Kiln/Raw Mill 



 



D.  SEGMENT (PROCESS/FUEL) INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 



Segment Description and Rate:  Segment 5 of 5 



1. Segment Description (Process/Fuel Type): 



Industrial Processes; In-Process Fuel Use; Natural Gas; General (Air Heater) 



 



2. Source Classification Code (SCC): 



3-90-006-89   



3. SCC Units: 



  Million Cubic Feet Burned 



4. Maximum Hourly Rate: 



0.03   



5. Maximum Annual Rate: 



262.8   



6. Estimated Annual Activity 



 Factor:   



7. Maximum % Sulfur: 



   



8. Maximum % Ash: 



   



9. Million Btu per SCC Unit: 



1,050   



10. Segment Comment: 



Segment represents natural gas usage for the raw mill air heater.   



Based on 32 MMBtu/hr (Permit No. 1210465-006-AV): 



  32 MMBtu/hr x MMcf/1,050 MMBtu = 0.03 MMcf/hr 



  0.03 MMcf x 8,760 hr/yr =  262.8 MMcf/yr   
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EMISSIONS UNIT INFORMATION 



Section [1]  of  [1]                In-Line Kiln/Raw Mill 



 



E.  EMISSIONS UNIT POLLUTANTS 



List of Pollutants Emitted by Emissions Unit 



1. Pollutant Emitted 2. Primary Control 



 Device Code 



3. Secondary Control 



 Device Code 



4. Pollutant 



 Regulatory Code 



PM  016   EL 



PM10  016   EL 



SO2  041    EL  



NOx  107   EL 



CO      EL 



VOC      EL 



D/F      EL 



THC      EL 



H114 (Hg)      EL  
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EMISSIONS UNIT INFORMATION POLLUTANT DETAIL INFORMATION 



Section [1] of [1]      Page   [1]   of     [9] 



 



F1.  EMISSIONS UNIT POLLUTANT DETAIL INFORMATION –  



POTENTIAL, FUGITIVE, AND ACTUAL EMISSIONS 



(Optional for unregulated emissions units.) 



Complete a Subsection F1 for each pollutant identified in Subsection E if applying for an 



air construction permit or concurrent processing of an air construction permit and a 



revised or renewal Title V operation permit.  Complete for each emissions-limited pollutant 



identified in Subsection E if applying for an air operation permit. 



Potential, Estimated Fugitive, and Baseline & Projected Actual Emissions 



1. Pollutant Emitted: 



PM   



2. Total Percent Efficiency of Control: 



   



3. Potential Emissions: 



23.1 lb/hour 92.7 tons/year 



4. Synthetically Limited? 



    Yes   No 



5. Range of Estimated Fugitive Emissions  (as applicable): 



   to   tons/year 



6. Emission Factor:  0.11 lb/ton dry preheater feed (3-hr. avg.) 



 



Reference:  Permit No. 1210465-019-AV 



7. Emissions 



 Method Code: 



 0  



8.a.  Baseline Actual Emissions  (if required): 



  tons/year 



8.b.  Baseline 24-month Period: 



From:  To:   



9.a.  Projected Actual Emissions  (if required): 



  tons/year 



9.b.  Projected Monitoring Period: 



            5 years     10 years 



10. Calculation of Emissions: 



Annual: 0.11 lb/ton x 1,684,578 TPY dry preheater feed / 2,000 lb/ton = 92.7 TPY   



11. Potential, Fugitive, and Actual Emissions Comment: 
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EMISSIONS UNIT INFORMATION POLLUTANT DETAIL INFORMATION 



Section [1] of [1]              Page [1]   of    [9] 



 



F2.  EMISSIONS UNIT POLLUTANT DETAIL INFORMATION - 



ALLOWABLE EMISSIONS 



Complete Subsection F2 if the pollutant identified in Subsection F1 is or would be subject 



to a numerical emissions limitation. 



Allowable Emissions  Allowable Emissions 1 of 1 



1. Basis for Allowable Emissions Code: 



OTHER   



2. Future Effective Date of Allowable 



 Emissions:   



3. Allowable Emissions and Units: 



0.11 lb/ton dry preheater feed (3-hr. avg.)   



4. Equivalent Allowable Emissions: 



23.1 lb/hour 92.7 tons/year 



5. Method of Compliance: 



Annual compliance testing using EPA Method 5.   



6. Allowable Emissions Comment (Description of Operating Method): 



Based on Permit No. 1210465-019-AV.   
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EMISSIONS UNIT INFORMATION POLLUTANT DETAIL INFORMATION 



Section [1] of [1]      Page   [2]   of     [9] 



 



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



 PM10  



2. Total Percent Efficiency of Control: 



   



3. Potential Emissions: 



19.6 lb/hour 78.3 tons/year 



4. Synthetically Limited? 



    Yes   No 



5. Range of Estimated Fugitive Emissions  (as applicable): 



   to   tons/year 



6. Emission Factor:  0.093 lb/ton dry preheater feed (3-hr. avg.) 



 



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



Annual: 0.093 lb/ton x 1,684,578 tons/year dry preheater feed / 2,000 lb/ton = 78.3 TPY   



11. Potential, Fugitive, and Actual Emissions Comment: 
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EMISSIONS UNIT INFORMATION POLLUTANT DETAIL INFORMATION 



Section [1] of [1]              Page [2]   of    [9] 



 



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



0.093 lb/ton dry preheater feed (3-hr avg.)   



4. Equivalent Allowable Emissions: 



19.6 lb/hour 78.3 tons/year 



5. Method of Compliance: 



Annual compliance testing using EPA Method 5 (assuming all PM measured is PM10).   



6. Allowable Emissions Comment (Description of Operating Method): 



Based on Permit No. 1210465-019-AV.   
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EMISSIONS UNIT INFORMATION POLLUTANT DETAIL INFORMATION 



Section [1] of [1]      Page   [3]   of     [9] 



 



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



22.0 lb/hour (24-hr avg)    88.3 tons/year 



4. Synthetically Limited? 



    Yes   No 



5. Range of Estimated Fugitive Emissions  (as applicable): 



   to   tons/year 



6. Emission Factor:  0.183 lb/ton clinker (24-hour rolling average) 



 



Reference:  See Attached Appendix 



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



3-hr average equivalent of 0.183 lb/ton-C 24-hr average is 0.20 lb/ton-C. 



 



Current hourly: 120 ton clinker/hr x 0.20 lb/ton clinker = 24 lb/hr 



Current Annual: 0.20 lb/ton clinker (3-hr avg.) x 965,425 TPY clinker / 2,000 = 96.5 TPY 



 



Proposed Hourly: 120 ton clinker/hr x 0.183 (24-hr avg) lb/ton clinker = 22.0 lb/hr 



Proposed Annual  : 0.183 lb/ton clinker x 965,425 ton clinker/yr/ 2000 = 88.3 TPY 



 



 



A more detailed description of this new 24-hour rolling average is described in the 



attached appendix. 



11. Potential, Fugitive, and Actual Emissions Comment: 
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EMISSIONS UNIT INFORMATION POLLUTANT DETAIL INFORMATION 



Section [1] of [1]              Page [3]   of    [9] 



 



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



0.183 lb/ton clinker (24-hr rolling average)   



4. Equivalent Allowable Emissions: 



22.0 lb/hour 88.3 tons/year 



5. Method of Compliance: 



Continuous emissions monitor and annual RATA.   



6. Allowable Emissions Comment (Description of Operating Method): 



See attached appendix 
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EMISSIONS UNIT INFORMATION POLLUTANT DETAIL INFORMATION 



Section [1] of [1]      Page   [4]   of     [9] 



 



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



 NOx  



2. Total Percent Efficiency of Control: 



   



3. Potential Emissions: 



348 lb/hour 1,159 tons/year 



4. Synthetically Limited? 



    Yes   No 



5. Range of Estimated Fugitive Emissions  (as applicable): 



   to   tons/year 



6. Emission Factor:  2.9 lb/ton clinker (24 hour average) 



                                   2.4 lb/ton clinker (30-day average) 



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



Hourly: 2.9 lb/ton clinker x 120 TPH clinker = 348 lb/hr  



Annual: 2.4 lb/ton clinker x 965,425 TPY clinker x 1 ton/2,000 lb = 1,158.51 TPY 



   



11. Potential, Fugitive, and Actual Emissions Comment: 
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EMISSIONS UNIT INFORMATION POLLUTANT DETAIL INFORMATION 



Section [1] of [1]              Page [4]   of    [9] 



 



F2.  EMISSIONS UNIT POLLUTANT DETAIL INFORMATION - 



ALLOWABLE EMISSIONS 



Complete Subsection F2 if the pollutant identified in Subsection F1 is or would be subject 



to a numerical emissions limitation. 



Allowable Emissions  Allowable Emissions 1 of 3 



1. Basis for Allowable Emissions Code: 



OTHER  



2. Future Effective Date of Allowable 



 Emissions:   



3. Allowable Emissions and Units: 



2.9 lb/ton clinker (24-hour average) 



4. Equivalent Allowable Emissions: 



304.5 lb/hour  tons/year 



5. Method of Compliance: 



Continuous emissions monitor and annual RATA.   



6. Allowable Emissions Comment (Description of Operating Method): 



Based on Permit No. 1210465-019-AV.  Emissions are based on 24-hour average.   



Allowable Emissions  Allowable Emissions 2 of 3 



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



288 lb/hour tons/year 



5. Method of Compliance: 



Continuous emissions monitor and annual RATA.   



6. Allowable Emissions Comment (Description of Operating Method): 



Based on Permit No. 1210465-019-AV.  Emissions are based on 30-operating day block 



average.    



Allowable Emissions  Allowable Emissions 3 of 3 



1. Basis for Allowable Emissions Code: 



OTHER   



2. Future Effective Date of Allowable 



 Emissions:   



3. Allowable Emissions and Units: 



600 lb/hr   



4. Equivalent Allowable Emissions: 



600 lb/hour  tons/year 



5. Method of Compliance: 



No compliance demonstration required.   



6. Allowable Emissions Comment (Description of Operating Method): 



Based on Permit No. 1210465-019-AV.  Emission limit applies to start-up only (no 



material in the kiln) and for up to one hour duration per startup.   
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EMISSIONS UNIT INFORMATION POLLUTANT DETAIL INFORMATION 



Section [1] of [1]      Page   [5]   of     [9] 



 



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



400.3 lb/hour 1,612 tons/year 



4. Synthetically Limited? 



    Yes   No 



5. Range of Estimated Fugitive Emissions  (as applicable): 



   to   tons/year 



6. Emission Factor:  3.34 lb/ton clinker (3-hour average) 



 



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



Annual: 3.34 lb/ton clinker x 965,425 TPY clinker x 1 ton/2,000 lb = 1,612.3 TPY   



11. Potential, Fugitive, and Actual Emissions Comment: 
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EMISSIONS UNIT INFORMATION POLLUTANT DETAIL INFORMATION 



Section [1] of [1]              Page [5]   of    [9] 



 



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



3.34 lb/ton clinker (3-hour average)   



4. Equivalent Allowable Emissions: 



400.3 lb/hour 1,612 tons/year 



5. Method of Compliance: 



Annual compliance test using EPA Method 10.   



6. Allowable Emissions Comment (Description of Operating Method): 



Based on Permit No. 1210465-019-AV.   
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EMISSIONS UNIT INFORMATION POLLUTANT DETAIL INFORMATION 



Section [1] of [1]      Page   [6]   of     [9] 



 



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



VOC   



2. Total Percent Efficiency of Control: 



   



3. Potential Emissions: 



14.4 lb/hour 57.9 tons/year 



4. Synthetically Limited? 



    Yes   No 



5. Range of Estimated Fugitive Emissions  (as applicable): 



   to   tons/year 



6. Emission Factor:   



0.12 lb/ton clinker (30-operating day block average) 



 



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



Annual: 0.12 lb/ton clinker x 965,425 TPY clinker x 1 ton/2,000 lb = 57.93 TPY   



11. Potential, Fugitive, and Actual Emissions Comment: 
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EMISSIONS UNIT INFORMATION POLLUTANT DETAIL INFORMATION 



Section [1] of [1]              Page [6]   of    [9] 



 



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



0.12 lb/ton clinker (30-operating day block 



average)   



4. Equivalent Allowable Emissions: 



14.4 lb/hour tons/year 



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



Section [1] of [1]      Page   [7]   of     [9] 



 



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



D/F   



2. Total Percent Efficiency of Control: 



   



3. Potential Emissions: 



 lb/hour  tons/year 



4. Synthetically Limited? 



    Yes   No 



5. Range of Estimated Fugitive Emissions  (as applicable): 



   to   tons/year 



6. Emission Factor:  0.20 ng/dscm @ 7% O2 



0.40 ng/dscm @ 7% O2 when PM control device inlet temperature 



is ≤ 204
o
C 



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



Section [1] of [1]              Page [7]   of    [9] 



 



F2.  EMISSIONS UNIT POLLUTANT DETAIL INFORMATION - 



ALLOWABLE EMISSIONS 



Complete Subsection F2 if the pollutant identified in Subsection F1 is or would be subject 



to a numerical emissions limitation. 



Allowable Emissions  Allowable Emissions 1 of 2 



1. Basis for Allowable Emissions Code: 



RULE   



2. Future Effective Date of Allowable 



 Emissions:   



3. Allowable Emissions and Units: 



0.20 ng/dscm @ 7% O2   



4. Equivalent Allowable Emissions: 



 lb/hour  tons/year 



5. Method of Compliance: 



Compliance test using EPA Method 23 every 30 months.   



6. Allowable Emissions Comment (Description of Operating Method): 



Based on Permit No. 1210465-019-AV and 40 CFR 63 Subpart LLL.  Limit applies when 



the inlet temperature of the PM control device is > 204
o
C. 



Allowable Emissions  Allowable Emissions 2 of 2 



1. Basis for Allowable Emissions Code: 



RULE   



2. Future Effective Date of Allowable 



 Emissions:   



3. Allowable Emissions and Units: 



0.40 ng/dscm @7% O2   



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



the inlet temperature of the PM control device is ≤ 204
o
C.   
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EMISSIONS UNIT INFORMATION POLLUTANT DETAIL INFORMATION 



Section [1] of [1]      Page   [8]   of     [9] 



 



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



THC   



2. Total Percent Efficiency of Control: 



   



3. Potential Emissions: 



66.5 lb/hour 291 tons/year 



4. Synthetically Limited? 



    Yes   No 



5. Range of Estimated Fugitive Emissions  (as applicable): 



   to   tons/year 



6. Emission Factor:  50 ppmvd as propane @ 7% O2 



 



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



 



194,000 dscfm x 50/10^6 x 60 x lbmole/385 dscf x 44 lb/lbmol =66.5 lb/hr 



54.6 x 8760 /2000 = 291 tpy 



11. Potential, Fugitive, and Actual Emissions Comment: 
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EMISSIONS UNIT INFORMATION POLLUTANT DETAIL INFORMATION 



Section [1] of [1]              Page [8]   of    [9] 



 



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



50 ppmvd as propane @ 7% O2   



4. Equivalent Allowable Emissions: 



66.5 lb/hour 291 tons/year 



5. Method of Compliance: 



Continuous THC emissions monitor.  For compliance purposes, monitor results (THC as 



propane) are considered to be VOC (VOC as propane).   



6. Allowable Emissions Comment (Description of Operating Method): 



Based on Permit No. 1210465-019-AV and 40 CFR 63.1343(c)(4).   
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



H114 (Mercury)   



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



97 lb/consecutive 12-months in raw feed and fuels 



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



Section [1] of [1]              Page [9]   of    [9] 



 



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



97 lb/consecutive 12-months in raw feed and 



fuels   



4. Equivalent Allowable Emissions: 



 lb/hour  tons/year 



5. Method of Compliance: 



Material balance by sampling and analysis of raw materials and fuels. 



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



 



G.  VISIBLE EMISSIONS INFORMATION 



Complete Subsection G if this emissions unit is or would be subject to a unit-specific visible 



emissions limitation. 



Visible Emissions Limitation:  Visible Emissions Limitation 1 of 1 



1. Visible Emissions Subtype: 



 VE10  



2. Basis for Allowable Opacity: 



   Rule     Other 



3. Allowable Opacity: 



 Normal Conditions:  10% Exceptional Conditions:  % 



 Maximum Period of Excess Opacity Allowed:  min/hour 



4. Method of Compliance:  Continuous Opacity Monitor; 6-minutes 



5. Visible Emissions Comment:  Based on Permit No. 1210465-006-AV and 40 CFR 



63.1350. 
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EMISSIONS UNIT INFORMATION 



Section [1]        of       [1]                 In-Line Kiln/Raw Mill 



 



H.  CONTINUOUS MONITOR INFORMATION 



Complete Subsection H if this emissions unit is or would be subject to continuous 



monitoring. 



Continuous Monitoring System:  Continuous Monitor 1 of 8 



1. Parameter Code: 



EM   



2. Pollutant(s): 



NOx   



3. CMS Requirement:     Rule   Other 



4. Monitor Information...   



Manufacturer:  Sick Maihak 



Model Number: GM31  Serial Number:   



5. Installation Date: 



   



6. Performance Specification Test Date: 



   



7. Continuous Monitor Comment:  Based on Permit No. 1210465-019-AV. 



Continuous Monitoring System:  Continuous Monitor 2 of 8 



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



Continuous Monitoring System:  Continuous Monitor 3 of 8 



1. Parameter Code: 



EM   



2. Pollutant(s): 



THC    



3. CMS Requirement:   Rule     Other 



4. Monitor Information...   



Manufacturer:  EUROFID 



Model Number:   Serial Number:   



5. Installation Date: 



   



6. Performance Specification Test Date: 



   



7. Continuous Monitor Comment:  Based on Permit No. 1210465-019-AV, 40 CFR 



63.1349, and 40 CFR 63.1350.  Results (THC as propane) are considered to be VOC 



(VOC as propane).  If methane is measured concurrently with THC, then “THC as 



propane, minus methane” can be considered VOC (VOC as propane) for compliance 



purposes. 



Continuous Monitoring System:  Continuous Monitor 4 of 8 



1. Parameter Code: 



TEMP   



2. Pollutant(s): 



   



3. CMS Requirement:   Rule     Other 



4. Monitor Information...   



Manufacturer:   



Model Number:   Serial Number:   



5. Installation Date: 



   



6. Performance Specification Test Date: 



   



7. Continuous Monitor Comment:  Continuous temperature monitor at the inlet to the in-



line kiln/raw mill baghouse.  Based on Permit No. 1210465-019-AV and 40 CFR 63.1349 



and 40 CFR 63.1350. 
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



Continuous Monitoring System:  Continuous Monitor 5 of 8 



1. Parameter Code: 



VE   



2. Pollutant(s): 



   



3. CMS Requirement:   Rule     Other 



4. Monitor Information...   



Manufacturer:  Sick Maihak 



Model Number:  OMD41 Serial Number:   



5. Installation Date: 



   



6. Performance Specification Test Date: 



   



7. Continuous Monitor Comment:  Continuous opacity monitor.  Based on Permit No. 



1210465-019-AV and Rule 40 CFR 63.1350. 



Continuous Monitoring System:  Continuous Monitor 6 of 8 



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



   



7. Continuous Monitor Comment:  Not for compliance.   



Process monitor.  Based on Permit No. 1210465-019-AV. 
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



Continuous Monitoring System:  Continuous Monitor 7 of 8 



1. Parameter Code: 



Ammonia  



2. Pollutant(s): 



   



3. CMS Requirement:   Rule     Other 



4. Monitor Information...   



Manufacturer:   



Model Number:   Serial Number:   



5. Installation Date: 



   



6. Performance Specification Test Date: 



   



7. Continuous Monitor Comment: not for compliance. Continuously monitors ammonia 



injection rate to the SNCR system.  Based on Permit No. 1210465-019-AV. 



 



Continuous Monitoring System:  Continuous Monitor 8 of 8 



1. Parameter Code: FLOW 



 



2. Pollutant(s): 



   



3. CMS Requirement:   Rule     Other 



4. Monitor Information...   



Manufacturer:   



Model Number:   Serial Number:   



5. Installation Date: 2003 



   



6. Performance Specification Test Date: 



   



7. Continuous Monitor Comment:   



Required by BACT, upcoming 40 CFR 63 emission limits and 40 CFR 98. 



 



 



NOTE  - HCL PM and HG monitors have not been purchased yet. 
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EMISSIONS UNIT INFORMATION 



Section [1]  of  [1]                In-Line Kiln/Raw Mill 



 



I.  EMISSIONS UNIT ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 



Additional Requirements for All Applications, Except as Otherwise Stated 



1. Process Flow Diagram:  (Required for all permit applications, except Title V air operation 



permit revision applications if this information was submitted to the department within the 



previous five years and would not be altered as a result of the revision being sought) 



  Attached, Document ID:                           Previously Submitted, Date:                



2. Fuel Analysis or Specification:  (Required for all permit applications, except Title V air 



operation permit revision applications if this information was submitted to the department 



within the previous five years and would not be altered as a result of the revision being sought) 



     Attached, Document ID:         Previously Submitted, Date  N/A  



3. Detailed Description of Control Equipment:  (Required for all permit applications, except 



Title V air operation permit revision applications if this information was submitted to the 



department within the previous five years and would not be altered as a result of the revision 



being sought) 



  Attached, Document ID:               Previously Submitted, Date    



4. Procedures for Startup and Shutdown:  (Required for all operation permit applications, except 



Title V air operation permit revision applications if this information was submitted to the 



department within the previous five years and would not be altered as a result of the revision being 



sought) 



  Attached, Document ID:                    Previously Submitted, Date    



  Not Applicable (construction application) 



5. Operation and Maintenance Plan:  (Required for all permit applications, except Title V air 



operation permit revision applications if this information was submitted to the department 



within the previous five years and would not be altered as a result of the revision being sought) 



  Attached, Document ID:                        Previously Submitted, Date    



  Not Applicable  



6. Compliance Demonstration Reports/Records: 



    Attached, Document ID:    



Test Date(s)/Pollutant(s) Tested:    



  Previously Submitted, Date:  7/26/13  &  10/10/13                                                                               



Test Date(s)/Pollutant(s) Tested:    



    To be Submitted, Date (if known):  



Test Date(s)/Pollutant(s) Tested:    



    Not Applicable 



Note:  For FESOP applications, all required compliance demonstration records/reports must be 



submitted at the time of application.  For Title V air operation permit applications, all required 



compliance demonstration reports/records must be submitted at the time of application, or a 



compliance plan must be submitted at the time of application. 



7. Other Information Required by Rule or Statute: 



     Attached, Document ID:    Not Applicable 
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EMISSIONS UNIT INFORMATION 



Section [1]  of  [1]                In-Line Kiln/Raw Mill 



 



I.  EMISSIONS UNIT ADDITIONAL INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 



Additional Requirements for Air Construction Permit Applications 



1. Control Technology Review and Analysis (Rules 62-212.400(10) and 62-212.500(7), 



F.A.C.; 40 CFR 63.43(d) and (e)): 



     Attached, Document ID:      Not Applicable 



2. Good Engineering Practice Stack Height Analysis (Rules 62-212.400(4)(d) and 62-



212.500(4)(f), F.A.C.): 



     Attached, Document ID:      Not Applicable 



3. Description of Stack Sampling Facilities:  (Required for proposed new stack sampling facilities 



only) 



     Attached, Document ID:      Not Applicable 



Additional Requirements for Title V Air Operation Permit Applications 



1. Identification of Applicable Requirements: 



   Attached, Document ID:                     



2. Compliance Assurance Monitoring: 



     Attached, Document ID:    Not Applicable 



3. Alternative Methods of Operation: 



     Attached, Document ID:    Not Applicable 



4. Alternative Modes of Operation (Emissions Trading): 



     Attached, Document ID:    Not Applicable 



Additional Requirements Comment 



  



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 











AIR CONSTRUCTION PERMIT APPLICATION 



SUWANNEE AMERICAN CEMENT, LLC 



FACILITY ID: 1210465 
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Suwannee American Cement, LLC 



Branford Cement Plant 



5117 US Highway 27 



Branford, FL 32008 
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Koogler and Associates, Inc. 



4014 NW 13
th



 St.  
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Appendix 
Suwannee American Cement, LLC 



Facility ID: 1210465 



Air Construction Permit Application for adjustment of  



averaging period for SO2 emissions from EU004 
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EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 



Suwannee American Cement, LLC (SAC) owns and operates a cement plant located in Branford, 



Florida, designated as the Branford Cement Plant. The cement plant consists of one dry-process 



kiln with preheater, precalciner, and clinker cooler permitted to produce 965,425 tons per year 



(TPY) of clinker. The cement produced by SAC is typically distributed to ready-mix facilities 



within 100 miles of the facility and is used in many different construction projects throughout 



North Florida. SAC’s cement is locally produced and locally consumed. The Florida Department 



of Environmental Protection (DEP) issued the initial air construction permit for the SAC dry-



process cement kiln in 2000 and the facility began operation in 2003. Its current Title V permit is 



1210465-019-AV.  



 



This construction permit application requests an adjustment to the averaging period that is used 



for compliance of SO2 emissions from EU004, the In-Line Kiln/Raw Mill. The current Title-V 



permit, which is in the process of renewal, is 1210465-019-AV. Currently the facility is allowed 



to emit 0.20 lb/ton-clinker, based on a 3-hr average, from EU004. The adjustment to this 



averaging period and the updated proposed emission limit proposal will follow in the upcoming 



section.  
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ADJUSTMENT OF THE SO2 LB/TON-CLINKER AVERAGING TIME FOR EU004 



 



The current Title-V permit, which is in the process of renewal, is 1210465-019-AV. Currently 



the facility is allowed to emit 0.20 lb/ton-clinker, based on a 3-hr average, from EU004. The 



adjustment to this averaging period and the updated proposed emission limit proposal roughly 



followed the same methodology given in the EPA Memorandum titled “Guidance for 1-Hour 



SO2 Nonattainment Area SIP Submissions,” published on April 23, 2014 by Stephen D. Page, 



Director of the OAQPS. 



 



To calculate an equivalent emission rate, a ratio was calculated using valid SO2 measurements 



from SAC’s SO2 CEMS, spanning November 1, 2009 – December 16, 2014. In total, there were 



24,639 valid data points of 1-hr average values for SO2 emissions over this time period. Since 



the NAAQS for SO2 is based off of the 99
th



 percentile of the maximum 1-hr daily 



concentrations, the values analyzed in this study utilize the 99
th



 percentile values from the SO2 



CEMS. 



 



As such, the 246
th



 highest value from the past 5-years, using only valid data, was 8.65 lb/hr, 



based on a 1-hr average. In addition, the 246
th



 highest value from the past 5-years, using only 



valid data, was 8.44 and 7.71 lb/hr, based on a 3-hr and a 24-hr averaging period, respectively. 



The ratio used in the equivalent conversion of a 3-hr average to a 24-hr average was calculated 



by using the following method: 



 



𝑅𝑎𝑡𝑖𝑜 (
24 − ℎ𝑟



3 − ℎ𝑟
) = 7.713



𝑙𝑏 𝑆𝑂2



ℎ𝑟
÷ 8.442



𝑙𝑏 𝑆𝑂2



ℎ𝑟
= 0.914 



 



Since the current SO2 limit for SAC is 0.20 lb/ton-clinker, based on a 3-hr average, the 



equivalent 24-hr average using the 99
th



 percentile methodology outlined in the EPA 



memorandum would be: 



 



24 − ℎ𝑟 𝐴𝑣𝑔. 𝐿𝑖𝑚𝑖𝑡 (
𝑙𝑏 𝑆𝑂2



𝑡𝑜𝑛 − 𝐶
) = 0.20



𝑙𝑏 𝑆𝑂2



𝑡𝑜𝑛 − 𝐶
× 0.914 = 0.183



𝑙𝑏 𝑆𝑂2



𝑡𝑜𝑛 − 𝐶
 (24 − ℎ𝑟 𝑎𝑣𝑔. ) 



 
























 
 
 


From: "Dr. Max Lee" <mlee@kooglerassociates.com>
To: "Alvaro Linero (aalinero@comcast.net)" <aalinero@comcast.net>
Cc: "Messer Tom" <tomm@vcsmc.com>, "Cole Krishna"
 <krishnac@suwanneecement.com>, "John D. Phillips
 (John.D.Phillips@dep.state.fl.us) (John.D.Phillips@dep.state.fl.us)"
 <John.D.Phillips@dep.state.fl.us>, "Leslie Maybin
 (Leslie.Maybin@dep.state.fl.us)" <Leslie.Maybin@dep.state.fl.us>,
 "Richard.Rachal@dep.state.fl.us" <Richard.Rachal@dep.state.fl.us>,
 "Karl Seltzer" <kseltzer@kooglerassociates.com>
Sent: Friday, January 9, 2015 5:37:42 PM
Subject: 624-14-08 AC Permit Application for Facility ID 1210465
 
Dear Al,
 
Please find attached an application regarding Suwannee American Cement
 requesting to revise the short-term SO2 standard to a 24-hour average value. 
 Please let me know if you have questions and we look forward to working with
 you on this application.
 
Best,
Max
 
 
Max Lee, Ph.D., P.E.
President
www.kooglerassociates.com
Koogler and Associates, Inc.
4014 NW 13th st.
Gainesville, FL 32609
Office 352 377-5822
Cell 352 318 4450
mlee@kooglerassociates.com
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From: EPOST_AIR_TAL_OLD
To: mlee@kooglerassociates.com
Cc: tomm@suwanneecement.com; krishnac@suwanneecement.com; Subramaniam, Pawan; EPOST_AIR_TAL_OLD;


 EPOST_AIR_NED (Shared Mailbox); Scearce, Lynn
Subject: MODIFICATION APPLICATION NO. 1210465-034-AC, SUWANNEE AMERICAN CEMENT
Date: Monday, January 12, 2015 10:35:15 AM


Dear Applicant:


Our office has received the air pollution permit application that you submitted for the project described below:


  Facility Owner/Company Name: SUWANNEE AMERICAN CEMENT CO.
  Site Name: SUWANNEE AMERICAN CEMENT
  Project Name: AB352:  SO2 STANDARD
  Project Description: This application is to adjust the averaging period of the allowable SO2 emissions from EU004.
 The applicant requests that the original PSD permit establish the SO2 3-hr limit to be revised and congruent to this
 revision.
  Application Project No: 1210465-034-AC
  Application Received Date: 01/09/2015
  Permit Application Processor: Pawan Subramaniam
  Permit Application Processor Phone:
  Permit Application Processor Email: Pawan.Subramaniam@dep.state.fl.us


We will review the application in a timely manner and contact you soon if any additional information is needed in
 order to process it.  To avoid formal written requests for additional information, we encourage our permit
 processors to contact you directly by e-mail or by phone to resolve any questions or provide missing information. 
 Our goal is to reduce the overall time required to process your application.  We appreciate your efforts to help us
 meet this goal by ensuring that your response to any of our questions is timely, thorough and complete. If no
 additional information is required from you to process the application, we will be sending you a draft of the permit
 for your review and comment.


If you did not include a full payment for this application's fees and would like to make an online payment for the
 outstanding balance, please visit the DEP Business Portal - https://www.fldepportal.com - and complete the online
 payment process for a  submitted application. Please note that the following fee types may not be completed
 through this process:


   * Payments for annual fees
   * Payments for non-Title V Air General Permits
   * Payments processed by a local delegated program
   * Partial payments for application balances


If you have any questions, or if you received this email in error, please contact the Permit Application Processor
 listed above by phone or e-mail.  You may also schedule a meeting or teleconference with the Permit Application
 Processor at any time during the application review process.


Best Regards,


Florida Department of Environmental Protection                     
Division of Air Resource Management                     
2600 Blair Stone Road, MS. 5500                     
Tallahassee, FL 32399                     
Tel. 850-717-9000


                                  Please do not reply to this auto-generated email.                                
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ARMS FACILITY ROLE(S): APPLICATION CONTACT PROFESSIONAL ENGINEER


ARMS FACILITY OFFICE IS:-  NED; PA PERMITTING OFFICE IS:- TAL








From: Scearce, Lynn
To: Krishna Cole
Cc: Subramaniam, Pawan
Subject: RE: 1210465-034-AC, Suwannee American Cement, LLC, Branford Cement Plant, Draft
Date: Thursday, March 12, 2015 1:53:03 PM
Attachments: 1210465-034-AC - Public Notice.docx
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From: Krishna Cole [mailto:krishnac@suwanneecement.com] 
Sent: Thursday, March 12, 2015 1:49 PM
To: Scearce, Lynn; Tom Messer; Subramaniam, Pawan
Cc: Dr. Max Lee; Rachal, Richard; Ceron, Heather; Shepherd.Lorinda@epa.gov; Subramaniam,
 Pawan; Read, David
Subject: RE: 1210465-034-AC, Suwannee American Cement, LLC, Branford Cement Plant, Draft


 


Pawan,


Just received the Notice of Draft Permit.  Can I get a MS Word version of the public notice for
 submittal to the publisher.


Thank you,


Krishna


***************************
Krishna C. Cole, P.E.
Environmental Manager
Suwannee American Cement, LLC
5117 US HWY 27
Branford, FL 32008
(386) 935-5023 office
(386) 965-3866 cell
(386) 935-5080 fax
Email: krishnac@vcsmc.com


 


 


From: Scearce, Lynn [mailto:Lynn.Scearce@dep.state.fl.us] 
Sent: Thursday, March 12, 2015 1:13 PM
To: Tom Messer
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PUBLIC NOTICE OF INTENT TO ISSUE AIR PERMIT


Florida Department of Environmental Protection


Division of Air Resource Management, Office of Permitting and Compliance


Draft Air Permit No. 1210465-034-AC


Suwannee American Cement, LLC, Branford Cement Plant


Suwannee County, Florida


Applicant:  The applicant for this project is Suwannee American Cement, LLC.  The applicant’s authorized representative and mailing address is:  Mr. Tom Messer, Plant Manager, Suwannee American Cement, LLC, Post Office Box 410, Branford, Florida  32008.


Facility Location Suwannee American Cement, LLC operates the Branford Cement Plant, which is located in Suwannee County at 5117 US Highway 27 in Branford, Florida.


Project:  The applicant applied on January 9, 2015 to the Department for an air construction permit.  The applicant proposes changes to the sulfur dioxide (SO2) emission standard applicable to Emission Unit 004 - In-Line Kiln/Raw Mill.  The applicant requests a lower SO2 emission limit (from 0.20 to 0.183 pounds per ton of clinker produced) and a longer averaging period from (3 hours to 24 hours, rolling), measured by a continuous emission monitoring system (CEMS).  Details of the project are provided in the application and the enclosed Technical Evaluation and Preliminary Determination.


SO2 emissions from the kiln are well-controlled by judicious choices of raw materials; scrubbing by finely divided lime in the calciner; scrubbing by the moist limestone in the raw mill; and injection of hydrated lime into the exhaust gases.  Ultimately, virtually all sulfur contained in the fuel and raw materials is incorporated into the clinker product.  


On September 9, 2015 the kiln will be subject to a new hydrogen chloride (HCl) emission standard pursuant to Maximum Achievable Control Technology (MACT) at 40 Code of Federal Regulations, Part 63, Subpart LLL – National Emission Standard for Hazardous Air Pollutants – Portland Cement Plants.  The requirement to control HCl stack concentration to 3 parts per million by volume will tend to further suppress SO2 emissions.  


The Department does not expect a significant increase in SO2 emissions as a result of the revised limit and averaging time.  A review pursuant to the rules for Prevention of Significant Deterioration (PSD) at Section 62-212.400, Florida Administrative Code (F.A.C.) and a Best Available Control Technology (BACT) were not required.


Permitting Authority:  Applications for air construction permits are subject to review in accordance with the provisions of Chapter 403, Florida Statutes (F.S.) and Chapters 62-4, 62-210 and 62-212, F.A.C.  The proposed project is not exempt from air permitting requirements and an air permit is required to perform the proposed work.  The Division of Air Resource Management’s (DARM) Office of Permitting and Compliance is the Permitting Authority responsible for making a permit determination for this project.  The Permitting Authority’s physical address is:  2600 Blair Stone Road, Tallahassee, Florida.  The Permitting Authority’s mailing address is:  2600 Blair Stone Road, MS #5505, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-2400.  The Permitting Authority’s telephone number is 850/717-9000.


Project File:  A complete project file is available for public inspection during the normal business hours of 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m., Monday through Friday (except legal holidays), at address indicated above for the Permitting Authority.  The complete project file includes the Draft Permit, the Technical Evaluation and Preliminary Determination, the application, and the information submitted by the applicant, exclusive of confidential records under Section 403.111, F.S.  Interested persons may contact the Permitting Authority’s project review engineer for additional information at the address and phone number listed above.  In addition, electronic copies of these documents are available on the following web site by entering draft permit number:  http://www.dep.state.fl.us/air/emission/apds/default.asp.


Notice of Intent to Issue Air Permit:  The Permitting Authority gives notice of its intent to issue an air permit to the applicant for the project described above.  The applicant has provided reasonable assurance that operation of the proposed equipment will not adversely impact air quality and that the project will comply with all applicable provisions of Chapters 62-4, 62-204, 62-210, 62-212, 62-296 and 62-297, F.A.C.  The Permitting Authority will issue a Final Permit in accordance with the conditions of the proposed Draft Permit unless a timely petition for an administrative hearing is filed under Sections 120.569 and 120.57, F.S. or unless public comment received in accordance with this notice results in a different decision or a significant change of terms or conditions.


Comments:  The Permitting Authority will accept written comments concerning the proposed Draft Permit and requests for a public meeting for a period of 30 days from the date of publication of the Public Notice.  Written comments must be received by the Permitting Authority by close of business (5:00 p.m.) on or before the end of this 30-day period.  In addition, if a public meeting is requested within the 30-day comment period and conducted by the Permitting Authority, any oral and written comments received during the public meeting will also be considered by the Permitting Authority.  If timely received comments result in a significant change to the Draft Permit, the Permitting Authority shall revise the Draft Permit and require, if applicable, another Public Notice.  All comments filed will be made available for public inspection.


Petitions:  A person whose substantial interests are affected by the proposed permitting decision may petition for an administrative hearing in accordance with Sections 120.569 and 120.57, F.S.  Petitions filed by any persons other than those entitled to written notice under Section 120.60(3), F.S., must be filed within 14 days of publication of the Public Notice or receipt of a written notice, whichever occurs first.  Under Section 120.60(3), F.S., however, any person who asked the Permitting Authority for notice of agency action may file a petition within 14 days of receipt of that notice, regardless of the date of publication.  A petitioner shall mail a copy of the petition to the applicant at the address indicated above, at the time of filing.  A petition for administrative hearing must contain the information set forth below and must be filed (received) with the Agency Clerk in the Office of General Counsel, 3900 Commonwealth Boulevard, MS 35, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3000, Agency.Clerk@dep.state.fl.us, before the deadline.  The failure of any person to file a petition within the appropriate time period shall constitute a waiver of that person’s right to request an administrative determination (hearing) under Sections 120.569 and 120.57, F.S., or to intervene in this proceeding and participate as a party to it.  Any subsequent intervention (in a proceeding initiated by another party) will be only at the approval of the presiding officer upon the filing of a motion in compliance with Rule 28-106.205, F.A.C.


A petition that disputes the material facts on which the Permitting Authority’s action is based must contain the following information: (a) The name and address of each agency affected and each agency’s file or identification number, if known; (b) The name, address, any email address, telephone number and any facsimile number of the petitioner; the name, address any email address, telephone number, and any facsimile number of the petitioner’s representative, if any, which shall be the address for service purposes during the course of the proceeding; and an explanation of how the petitioner’s substantial interests will be affected by the agency determination; (c) A statement of when and how each petitioner received notice of the agency action or proposed decision; (d) A statement of all disputed issues of material fact.  If there are none, the petition must so state; (e) A concise statement of the ultimate facts alleged, including the specific facts the petitioner contends warrant reversal or modification of the agency’s proposed action; (f) A statement of the specific rules or statutes the petitioner contends require reversal or modification of the agency’s proposed action including an explanation of how the alleged facts relate to the specific rules or statutes; and, (g) A statement of the relief sought by the petitioner, stating precisely the action the petitioner wishes the agency to take with respect to the agency’s proposed action.  A petition that does not dispute the material facts upon which the Permitting Authority’s action is based shall state that no such facts are in dispute and otherwise shall contain the same information as set forth above, as required by Rule 28-106.301, F.A.C.


Because the administrative hearing process is designed to formulate final agency action, the filing of a petition means that the Permitting Authority’s final action may be different from the position taken by it in this Public Notice of Intent to Issue Air Permit.  Persons whose substantial interests will be affected by any such final decision of the Permitting Authority on the application have the right to petition to become a party to the proceeding, in accordance with the requirements set forth above.


[bookmark: _GoBack]Mediation:  Mediation is not available in this proceeding.


(Public Notice to be Published in the Newspaper)












Cc: Krishna Cole; Dr. Max Lee; Rachal, Richard; Ceron, Heather; Shepherd.Lorinda@epa.gov;
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
Phone:  850-717-9025
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From: Read, David
To: Krishna Cole; Scearce, Lynn; Tom Messer; Subramaniam, Pawan
Cc: Dr. Max Lee; Rachal, Richard; Ceron, Heather; Shepherd.Lorinda@epa.gov; Subramaniam, Pawan
Subject: RE: 1210465-034-AC, Suwannee American Cement, LLC, Branford Cement Plant, Draft
Date: Thursday, March 12, 2015 1:54:34 PM
Attachments: 1230001-057-AC - Public Notice.docx


image001.png


Krishna it is attached.


 


David Lyle Read, P.E.
Environmental Administrator


Florida Department of Environmental Protection
Division of Air Resource Management
Permitting & Compliance Section
850-717-9075
David.Read@dep.state.fl.us


 


 


 


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


Draft Air Permit No. 1230001-057-AC


Foley Cellulose LLC, Foley Mill


Taylor County, Florida


Applicant:  The applicant for this project is Foley Cellulose LLC.  The applicant’s authorized representative and mailing address is:  Lee Davis, Vice President-General Manager, Foley Cellulose LLC, Foley Mill, 1 Buckeye Drive, Perry, Florida 32348..


Facility Location:  Foley Cellulose LLC operates the existing Foley Mill, which is located in Taylor County at 1 Buckeye Drive in Perry, Florida.


Project:  The applicant proposes to convert two existing bark boilers to hybrid suspension grate-type boilers and to replace several oil-fired auxiliary burners in each bark boiler with natural gas burners.  The bark dryer that currently uses waste heat from the No. 2 Bark Boiler to dry incoming biomass fuel will be removed from service and replaced with an economizer that will pre-heat boiler feed water.  This project will allow these two boilers to fall under the category “hybrid suspension/grate burners designed to burn wet biomass/bio-based solid” for compliance with the federal “Boiler MACT” regulations in the Code of Federal Regulations, Title 40, Part 63, Subpart DDDDD.


Permitting Authority:  Applications for air construction permits are subject to review in accordance with the provisions of Chapter 403, Florida Statutes (F.S.) and Chapters 62-4, 62-210 and 62-212 of the Florida Administrative Code (F.A.C.).  The proposed project is not exempt from air permitting requirements and an air permit is required to perform the proposed work.  The Permitting Authority responsible for making a permit determination for this project is the Office of Permitting and Compliance in the Department of Environmental Protection’s Division of Air Resource Management.  The Permitting Authority’s physical address is:  2600 Blair Stone Road, Tallahassee, Florida.  The Permitting Authority’s mailing address is:  2600 Blair Stone Road, MS #5505, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-2400.  The Permitting Authority’s phone number is 850-717-9000.


Project File:  A complete project file is available for public inspection during the normal business hours of 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m., Monday through Friday (except legal holidays), at the physical address indicated above for the Permitting Authority.  The complete project file includes the Draft Permit, the Technical Evaluation and Preliminary Determination, the application and information submitted by the applicant (exclusive of confidential records under Section 403.111, F.S.).  Interested persons may contact the Permitting Authority’s project engineer for additional information at the address and phone number listed above.  In addition, electronic copies of these documents can be accessed by entering Permit No. 1230001-057-AC in the indicated field at the following web site:  http://www.dep.state.fl.us/air/emission/apds/default.asp.


Notice of Intent to Issue Air Permit:  The Permitting Authority gives notice of its intent to issue an air construction permit to the applicant for the project described above.  The applicant has provided reasonable assurance that operation of proposed equipment will not adversely impact air quality and that the project will comply with all appropriate provisions of Chapters 62-4, 62-204, 62-210, 62-212, 62-296 and 62-297, F.A.C.  The Permitting Authority will issue a Final Permit in accordance with the conditions of the proposed Draft Permit unless a timely petition for an administrative hearing is filed under Sections 120.569 and 120.57, F.S. or unless public comment received in accordance with this notice results in a different decision or a significant change of terms or conditions.


Comments:  The Permitting Authority will accept written comments concerning the proposed Draft Permit for a period of 14 days from the date of publication of the Public Notice.  Written comments must be received by the Permitting Authority by close of business (5:00 p.m.) on or before the end of this 14-day period.  If written comments received result in a significant change to the Draft Permit, the Permitting Authority shall revise the Draft Permit and require, if applicable, another Public Notice.  All comments filed will be made available for public inspection.


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



mailto:krishnac@vcsmc.com

http://arm-permit2k.dep.state.fl.us/adh/prod/pdf_permit_zip_files/1210465.034.AC.D_pdf.zip

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
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From: Krishna Cole
To: Scearce, Lynn; Tom Messer; Subramaniam, Pawan
Cc: Dr. Max Lee; Rachal, Richard; Ceron, Heather; Shepherd.Lorinda@epa.gov; Subramaniam, Pawan; Read, David
Subject: RE: 1210465-034-AC, Suwannee American Cement, LLC, Branford Cement Plant, Draft
Date: Thursday, March 12, 2015 1:49:37 PM
Attachments: image001.png


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

http://survey.dep.state.fl.us/?refemail=Lynn.Scearce@dep.state.fl.us






From: Subramaniam, Pawan
To: "Dr. Max Lee"
Cc: tomm@suwanneecement.com; krishnac@suwanneecement.com; Linero, Alvaro; Read, David
Subject: RE: 624-14-08 RE: MODIFICATION APPLICATION NO. 1210465-034-AC, SUWANNEE AMERICAN CEMENT
Date: Thursday, January 29, 2015 2:44:00 PM


Max,
 
Thank you for getting your seal page and the RO signature.
 
I do not need a hard copy.
 
Thank you,
Pawan
 


From: Dr. Max Lee [mailto:mlee@kooglerassociates.com] 
Sent: Thursday, January 29, 2015 2:31 PM
To: Subramaniam, Pawan
Cc: tomm@suwanneecement.com; krishnac@suwanneecement.com; Linero, Alvaro; Read, David
Subject: RE: 624-14-08 RE: MODIFICATION APPLICATION NO. 1210465-034-AC, SUWANNEE
 AMERICAN CEMENT
 
Pawan,
 
Attached are my seal page and the RO page.
 
Do you need a hardcopy?
 
Max
 


From: Subramaniam, Pawan [mailto:Pawan.Subramaniam@dep.state.fl.us] 
Sent: Thursday, January 29, 2015 7:52 AM
To: Dr. Max Lee
Cc: tomm@suwanneecement.com; krishnac@suwanneecement.com; Linero, Alvaro; Read, David
Subject: RE: 624-14-08 RE: MODIFICATION APPLICATION NO. 1210465-034-AC, SUWANNEE
 AMERICAN CEMENT
 
Hi Max,
 
Thank you.
 
Pawan
 
 
 


From: Dr. Max Lee [mailto:mlee@kooglerassociates.com] 
Sent: Wednesday, January 28, 2015 5:24 PM



mailto:mlee@kooglerassociates.com

mailto:tomm@suwanneecement.com

mailto:krishnac@suwanneecement.com

mailto:Alvaro.Linero@dep.state.fl.us

mailto:David.Read@dep.state.fl.us





To: Subramaniam, Pawan
Cc: tomm@suwanneecement.com; krishnac@suwanneecement.com; Linero, Alvaro; Read, David
Subject: 624-14-08 RE: MODIFICATION APPLICATION NO. 1210465-034-AC, SUWANNEE AMERICAN
 CEMENT
 
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



http://www.kooglerassociates.com/

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
 



mailto:Pawan.Subramaniam@dep.state.fl.us

mailto:Pawan.Subramaniam@dep.state.fl.us

http://survey.dep.state.fl.us/?refemail=Pawan.Subramaniam@dep.state.fl.us
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From: Scearce, Lynn
To: Subramaniam, Pawan
Subject: RE: 624-14-08 RE: MODIFICATION APPLICATION NO. 1210465-034-AC, SUWANNEE AMERICAN CEMENT
Date: Thursday, January 29, 2015 2:40:49 PM


No longer necessary.  thanks!
 
From: Subramaniam, Pawan 
Sent: Thursday, January 29, 2015 2:40 PM
To: Scearce, Lynn
Subject: FW: 624-14-08 RE: MODIFICATION APPLICATION NO. 1210465-034-AC, SUWANNEE
 AMERICAN CEMENT
 
Hi Lynn,
 
The RO signature page is here too. Do we need him to send us the hard copy?
 
Thanks!
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



mailto:/O=EXCHANGELABS/OU=EXCHANGE ADMINISTRATIVE GROUP (FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=AD90AF96B1264CED888710B00EBEDF5D-SCEARCE_L

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
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1.       Page 6 of the application (PE statement) states that this is an application to obtain a Title V


 air operation permit(3). Would you please confirm if that it is indeed the case or you meant
 to indicate that this is an application to obtain an air construction permit (4)?


2.       I noticed that I do not have a signature for the Owner/Authorized Representative Statement
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
To: Subramaniam, Pawan; tomm@suwanneecement.com
Cc: krishnac@suwanneecement.com; Read, David; Karl Seltzer
Subject: RE: MODIFICATION APPLICATION NO. 1210465-034-AC, SUWANNEE AMERICAN CEMENT
Date: Monday, February 16, 2015 1:20:57 PM


Hi Pawan,
We are conferring over our internal comments and will get back you later this week.
In general the drafts are looking very reasonable.
Thanks,
Max
 


From: Subramaniam, Pawan [mailto:Pawan.Subramaniam@dep.state.fl.us] 
Sent: Monday, February 16, 2015 1:15 PM
To: tomm@suwanneecement.com
Cc: krishnac@suwanneecement.com; Dr. Max Lee; Read, David
Subject: RE: MODIFICATION APPLICATION NO. 1210465-034-AC, SUWANNEE AMERICAN CEMENT
 
Hi Tom,
 
I hope you have had a chance to review the preliminary drafts that I sent on 2/5/2015. I was
 wondering if you had any additional input or comments.  
Looking forward to hearing from you.
 
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
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